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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
March 29, 2010 is now in session. The time is 9:02. Members, I, I hope you had
a really good long weekend. I think we needed, needed that long weekend after
last week's Budget meetings. This morning the Chair would like to introduce the
Committee Members that are here with us. We do have Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excused at this time are Members Johnson, Victorino, and
Member Mateo. Members, for your information, Member Mateo and the Mayor
of this County is presently on Oahu. They have a Ways and Means Committee
Meeting in regards to that House bill we all talked about last week regarding the
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TAT and the capping of the TAT. Chair would like to also introduce the
Administration personnel that are with us this morning. Of course we do have the
Budget Director, Mr. Fred Pablo; our First Deputy Corporation Counsel,
Traci Fujita Villarosa; also the Managing Director, Sheri Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Economic Development Coordinator, Deidre
Tegarden. Good morning. Later on there are other members of the
Administration that will be present with us. Supporting the Committee, as
always, we do have Ms. Gayle Revels as well as Scott Kaneshina, both of 'em are
Legislative Analysts, and our Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier. Members,
we do have public testimony, we do have one person that has signed up for public
testimony. Before we take public testimony if everyone could turn their cell
phone to the off position or silent mode, Chair would appreciate that. For those of
you that are providing public testimony this morning, you have three minutes to
provide your testimony. Chair will give you an additional minute to conclude.
When you come up, please state your name, and the organization that you
represent. The Chair and the Committee would appreciate that. Members, the
person and only person that signed up prior to the meeting is Jocelyn Perreira.
...BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

MS. PERREIRA: Budget Chair Pontanilla,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. PERREIRA: --Council Members, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
MS. PERREIRA: My name is Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director, Tri-Isle
Main Street Program Coordinator for the Wailuku Main Street Association,
Inc./Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. I've been asked by the Architects
International of America Maui Chapter, to present testimony this morning.
Dear Mr. Mateo and Council Members, on behalf of the members of the
American Institute of Architects Maui Chapter, we strongly support the continued
funding of the Wailuku Main Street Association, Inc./Tri-Isle Main Street
Resource Center. The Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center has continued to be
an advocate and a true supporter of the preservation and growth, both
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architectural and economically for Maui County's small towns. Small towns here
in Maui County are true urban fabric which binds our island communities and
provides a framework which instills respect for our island past and provides a
window for our future.
The Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center has always served many towns here on
Maui, including Paia, Makawao, and Wailuku and also has aided other numerous
small towns on Maui when it came to decisions which would affect the quality of
life and economic success of those towns. Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center
has always worked closely with Maui County, private enterprise, and the design
professionals to find viable, long-term solutions for our small towns. It is vitally
important we continue to support the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center and the
exemplary work they have completed and will provide with the upcoming
community plans. The Maui County Plan is important to everyone on the island;
Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center provides a realistic recommendations that
strengthens and preserves our important small towns.
Again, we respectfully request your continued support and funding of the
Wailuku Main Street Association Inc./Tri-Isle Main Street Program. Your
support will continue one of Maui's very best community-based economic
programs, that seeks the preservation of our history, culture, economic viability,
and sense-of-place. Sincerely, Durwin Kiyabu, President this year for the AIA.
And this has been voted on by the architects, the AIA Maui Chapter. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again. Ms. Perreira was the only one that signed up prior to the
meeting. Is there anyone in the gallery that wanna provide public testimony at
this time? Seeing none, if there's no objections, the Chair would like to close
public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair would like to recognize the presence of
Councilmember Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ..
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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, today we are scheduled to review the Office of the
Mayor, as well as the Department of Management. On our first Department this
morning, Office of the Mayor, if you can turn to your proposed bill, Page 7 and 8.
And in the Program Budget, Page 13-1, Budget Details, Page 11-1. The budget
request for the Office of the Mayor is $10,079,525. Are there any opening
comments, Budget Director?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. And, and good morning, Members. This is
a third year of cost, cost cutting for the County of Maui. In the Office of the
Mayor we have seen a 24.3 percent decrease since the first year of cost cutting in
Fiscal Year 2009. The Offices, Office of the Mayor consists of three areas which
is, excuse me, there's some static. There, there's Administration section, which
includes the Budget Office and the Public Information Office. There's Economic
Development, and there's the Community Development Block Grant. The
Community Development Block Grant, CDBG, we heard their presentation last
month. So we'll be covering the Administration and Economic Development.
The Managing Director, Sheri Morrison, is sitting in for the, for the Mayor who's
presently in Honolulu. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Pablo. At this time, the Chair would like to
call on Ms. Morrison to proceed with a general overview of the budget for the
Mayor's Office for Fiscal Year 2011 highlighting the significant changes within
the budget from Fiscal Year 2010. Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm Sheri Morrison, Managing Director for
the County of Maui and as, was stated, the Mayor is in Honolulu today.
Hopefully, her presence and that of Council Chair Mateo's will help in our efforts
to retain our transient accommodations tax, at least our share of it. The Office of
the Mayor has broad responsibilities for oversight of all Executive Departments in
the County. This responsibility includes the work of the Budget Director, and his
staff, who have that huge responsibility of working with all County departments
and agencies to prepare and monitor the County's operating and capital
improvement budgets each year.
The Public Information Office works to assemble and distribute information about
County policies, projects, and activities, and is a critical part of public safety
communication. The Office of the Mayor serves as a liaison with the County
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Council between the Council and Executive Departments and also continues to
support good working relationships with the Hawaii Conference of Mayors, the
State Executive Departments, and the Legislature, and of course, our
Congressional Delegation in Washington. The office also has many other
ongoing responsibilities related to responding to citizen concerns, environmental
issues, and overseeing Civil Defense operations in times of emergency.
Other programs that are part of the Office of the Mayor include Community
Development Block Grant Program and the Office of Economic Development.
The Coordinator for the Office of Economic Development, Deidre Tegarden, is
here today and in a moment she will provide an overview of OED and its
proposed budget.
The budget proposal for Fiscal Year 2011 in the Office of the Mayor as the
Budget Director said, is again, reduced. As a result of the economic downturn
and the resulting shortfall in revenue, the overall budget proposal, including the
Office of Economic Development has been cut back this year by almost
12 percent. This includes a one day a month furlough for all appointed staff in the
Office of the Mayor, Community Development Block Grant Programs, and the
Office of Economic Development. The Administration program budget has been
reduced by over 217,000 or 10 percent, out of a total request of 1.96 million. The
Economic Development program budget has been reduced by over 1.1 million, or
12.2 percent, for a total request of County funds of 8.1 million. And as you know,
this includes a number of, of grants that are awarded by the County to other
organizations.
Despite the significant reductions we face in the coming year, the Office of
Economic Development is working hard on a number of fronts to support our
local economy. I'd like to ask Deidre Tegarden, our Economic Development
Coordinator to provide an overview for the Committee.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Tegarden.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you, Managing Director, and good morning, Committee Chair
Pontanilla, and Council Members. Thank you for the opportunity to be here today
to give an overview of the Office of Economic Development's Fiscal Year '11,
Operating Budget Request. We all realize that we are coming out of a very
economically tough year and headed into an even more challenging one.
The job of the Office of Economic Development is to promote and nurture
sustainable economic development within Maui County consistent with the
community's needs and priorities. OED works in partnership with the
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community, businesses, non-profit, and government sectors to strengthen and
diversify the economy by supporting existing businesses and by assisting in the
attraction, development, and expansion of new businesses. Now, more than ever,
we need to ensure that we maintain our outreach, grants, and services to our
community.
The program areas on which OED focuses are: Culture, Arts and Tourism,
Workforce, Business Development and Technology, Agriculture, Environmental
Resource Protection and Renewable Energy. All program areas have had many
successes this year and these successes are above and beyond the programs we
fund through our wonderful non-profit partners.
Under our Film Office, we recently had the filming of Clint Eastwood's
"Hereafter" bringing in a estimated $6 million into our community. Moving
forward, ABC's hit comedy "Modern Family" will be filming an episode here in
Maui, and an independent local film starring Willie K will be beginning filming,
and in a few months we will have a new Adam Sandler film titled "Just Go With
It" filming on our island. That production also stars Jennifer Aniston and Nicole
Kidman. And the total dollars estimated to come into our community with all of
these productions is about $31 million including hotel room nights, restaurants,
vendors, and employment dollars. The Adam Sandler film alone will employ
over 600 Maui County residents.
Under Renewable Energy, we hosted the 2 nd Annual Energy Expo sharing the
work and continuing to get feedback of over 75 community volunteers, as they
presented the Maui County Energy Alliance Plan to the over 300 attendees. Many
of you were able to take park in the Expo and we thank you for your support. The
MCEA report includes recommendations, including potential funding sources, on
Maui County's renewable energy future.
The Maui County Business Resource Center held over 100 business work shops
throughout the year and assisted over 4,700 entrepreneurs and small business
owners. Workshops have also been held in East Maui and Lanai. The Center also
holds customized networking sessions. The Kuhao Business Center in Molokai
has assisted over 1,000 entrepreneurs and small business owners and hosted
numerous workshops addressing everything from financial literacy to how to open
a business in Maui County. Both the Maui County Business Resource Center and
the Kuhao Business Center work hand in hand with our partners including
SCORE, MEO's Business Development Corporation, and the SBDC to ensure
that we are reaching the greatest amount of individuals with the most useful
knowledge for that particular group.
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Under Agriculture we are thrilled to have the Vacuum Cool Plant license turned
over to the Maui County Farm Bureau so that we may access grant funding for
repairs to the plant. This will allow our farmers to have a place to wash, store,
and pack their produce and flowers as well as look into new value-added
products. Our Ag Specialist has ensured that all the farmers in the Ag Park have
updated leases and he has also held regular meetings of the Ag Park Committee.
We are thrilled to once again be a part of the 3' d annual Ag Fest happening this
coming Saturday. That, that event last year saw over 4,000 attendees despite the
rain. This year we will be featuring farmers from Molokai in both our Grown on
Maui Tent and the Taste of Education Tent.
Above and beyond their regular programs, our Workforce Development section
coordinated a Job Fair that ran in conjunction with the State Department of Labor
and Industrial Relations Rapid Response Efforts. In December of '09, they served
approximately 300 employees of Maui Land & Pine, giving them access to 28
different local employers that had current employment opportunities available.
Mayor Tavares wanted to bring awareness to our local businesses so we designed
and implemented the Got Choice Think Local campaign. Encouraging residents
and visitors that when faced with a choice, to think about supporting local first.
The campaign has over 220 businesses involved right now with over 420 fans on
our Facebook page. And this was supposed to be a one month campaign, but due
to the overwhelming support, we have extended it through summer because after
all supporting local is something you do for more than just one month, it is a
lifestyle choice. We will incorporate this theme into our Mayor's Small Business
Awards dinner in October.
By invitation of the Chinese government, I had the opportunity to travel to our
Sister City, Sanya in Hainan Province in the People's Republic of China this past
week with Council Chair Mateo. We attended the Boao Tourism Forum with
over 1,500 attendees from across the globe. We shared our aloha spirit and had
the opportunity to promote Maui County as a tourism destination, and as a result
of our visit we have a delegation coming from Sanya City this summer. We also
visited Pingtung, Taiwan, in the Republic of China, another Sister City and started
very preliminary conversations about educational exchange programs to Maui
County.
OED took an active role in attracting funding this year as well beginning with
ARRA Workforce Investment funding in the amount of $577,000 as well as
ARRA Energy funding in the amount of $605,000. We are currently starting to
do our energy audits in 12 County facilities as a result of the funding and will
continue with installing of solar or wind panels in those specific buildings. The
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balance of the funding will go to the Department of Environmental Management
to put toward a feasibility study for Waste to Energy program.
And finally, Mayor Tavares and Joann Inamasu, our Deputy Coordinator, were
successful in their bid to the Economic Development Administration, EDA, for
1.2 million for design of the Wailuku Municipal Parking Structure. They were
also successful in securing 850,000 for the research and design of a new
Emergency Management Center.
We realize that this is a tough year not only for Maui County, for our State, but
globally as well. Residents, businesses, everyone is tightening their belts. I feel
that the OED budget is mindful of these economic times, asking for and utilizing
only what we need. I thank you for your time and look forward to answering any
questions you may have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Members, we're gonna start with
the Mayor's Office, again, we'll go with the A Account, B Account, and C
Account. Can start off with Page 11-1, oh, 11-2, of your Budget Details so at this
time the Chair would like to call on Mr. Victorino, if you have any questions on
the A Account.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And we're gonna just, okay. Ms. Tegarden, thank
you very much for the update and also Ms., I have these senior moments more
and more, but Sheri Morrison, sorry, sorry Sheri, I have these senior moments
more and more. Anyhow, let, let, let me ask this question, I, I see under your
operations, a tremendous cutback of 12 percent. This is in the Economic
Development Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino,-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --we're with the Administration first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry. I went down to, oh, okay.
apologize, I apologize. Okay, nope nothing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. That position 0093, Mr. Chairman, I see
they wanna fund a position this year.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Urn.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Was that position that was in the Administration's
Budget last year?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, it was. It was unfunded.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Then I, I want justification as to why in a year of
austerity you want to add another, to fund this position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Also, if you can take a look at the footnote,
footnote one, position unfunded in Fiscal Year 2010 and currently filled, so at this
time-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, it's filled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --it, it's filled, so somehow they must have had some savings to
fill that position, but I'll have the Budget Director or Ms. Morrison explain to you
regarding the filling of that position.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Like the Office of Council Services, the
Office of the Mayor has the privilege of having no position count. And as a result
of that we used Operations funds as does Council Services, when we need it for
positions in the Office of the Mayor. So the positions listed are certainly the ones
that arc appropriated and that's last year as the Council was searching for funds as
a result of, at that time the Council anticipated that we would not receive full
transient accommodations tax and so there was an effort, as you may recall, to
look through all the budget to find reductions. As it turned out, we did receive the
transient accommodations tax, however, this funding was not restored. But the
position was needed and it will continue to be needed, especially as we will be
experiencing furloughs in the coming year and so the Office of the Mayor will
stay open, we will not close, we will just have to stagger furloughs among staff
and as a result of that we will need the positions that are listed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Sheri, maybe you can remember, obviously last
year you, you probably agreed to no funding, and, and obviously you didn't fight
over wanting to have this position filled.
MS. MORRISON: As you may recall, there was a...
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COUNCILMEMBER

...(inaudible)... say something?

MS. MORRISON: Yes, sir. There was a considerable effort on the part of the Mayor to
get the position funding restored at the end of the year. However, the Committee
Chair ended by saying that it's a Program Budget and if we choose to fill the
position using Operating funds that, that was true in all departments as well as the
Office of the Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and I, and I think we learned that, that lesson,
didn't we,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --by, by wanting to put conditions on it we're going to
do anything now. I see, so there is a warm body there. Help me to understand
this, Sheri, you say we're gonna do a furlough program, okay. But yet you say
that in order to make this program work, you need a warm body. How does this,
how does this work, and how do you justify that, you, you're gonna furlough so
we're cutting hours from different individuals and yet now you wanna put in a
warm body. I, make me understand. Is this pretty common sense?
MS. MORRISON: The furlough situation is some, a decision that was made by the
Mayor after the union negotiations with HGEA and UPW concluded and we were
looking for ways to, this is as you obviously are aware is not a normal year. This
is a very difficult year.
COUNCILM EMBER NISHIKI: Yep.
MS. MORRISON: And in order to balance the budget and still keep the furlough day to
one day a month, as opposed to two days a month across the board, the Mayor
chose to include all appointed staff, including Managers and Directors and

Deputies and all of her appointed staff as well, in that furlough even though only
the union negotiated furloughs are required. That spread the, the burden across a
larger group and therefore we were able to generate a larger amount of savings as
you can see there's 74,000 in, in savings in this office alone which is a relatively
small office.
The Mayor's feeling was that a one day a month furlough is a 4.6 percent
reduction in staff and in, in payroll for an individual and that, that while not
something that everyone wants to look forward to is easier to bear than a
9 percent cut which would be a two day a month furlough. I think it was a
combination of her compassion about that as well as the practical matter of if you
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institute two days a month furloughs across HGEA, as well as UPW as well as our
staff, that's one more day of no one reviewing permit applications, one more day
of no one picking up trash, one more day of inspections not occurring and it slows
down our entire economy. So it was her effort to spread that across all staff
including our appointed staff so that we could reduce the amount of furlough days
that would have to be taken.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done. I don't, I don't-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --really understand that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Morrison, you know, Mr. Pablo mentioned that for the past
several years the Mayor has been cutting her, her budget, you know, going
forward from the first time that she got here, was elected Mayor. When we do
cost, cost cutting, how do we manage to look at Filling positions in this County for
the past three years, number one? And the second thing is if we're able to find
funding somewhere, is there an issue with monies being put aside, in other words,
is the budget fat in Operations? You know, obviously, when you fill in positions,
the money gotta come out from somewhere and, and going forward now we've
filled out a position that now we gotta fund going forward in 2011 and beyond so
if you can answer those questions.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No, the budget is not fat, in fact we've
continued to reduce our budget. If you would care to compare the Mayor's Office
Budget with the budgets in the Office of Council Services, for example, you will
also see the same thing that happens each year. The salary level that's indicated
in the A Account, is actually a number that is different in the actual expenditures
at the end of year. Because we both are in the position of not having EP
restrictions, we're able to manage the budgets in a way that wherever the needs
are greatest and move the money that way. A Program Budget is intended to
allow for that sort of flexibility and that's the way the operations have worked in
both the Legislative and the Executive Branch.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I understand that the Budget for Council Member Staff
comes out from the B Account which we are responsible for in hiring, as well as
controlling our expenditures in purchasing materials and, and also equipment. So
I, I kind of differ from that because Council Members are not allowed the
opportunity to hire other than through Operation Budget to staff their office.
Thank you for that explanation.
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MS. MORRISON: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, I, I must've misspoken because I wasn't
referencing, I didn't intend to reference the Council Member Staff, but rather the
Office of Council Services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we're part of Council Services so, thank you. Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just one question and
maybe for the Budget Director, on Page 11-2, under Administration Budget,
Position OM-0017, Executive Assistant. In the far right column, percent change,
there shows a change and I'm assuming that's a positive change. And what is that
change because the salary has not increased in both years?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, thank you, Councilmember Medeiros. It looks like it is a
computer glitch. It, it would be zero.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. PABLO: It, it's not an increase.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that correction. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTAN1LLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I was wanting to
help...get a little bit more information on Councilmember Nishiki's question
about the additional staff. So are, are you saying, Sheri, then that this Executive
Assistant that is being reflected in your, in your notes is now for assisting with the
furlough program. Is that what it is?
MS. MORRISON: No, Council Member. The position is in the, in the operating...there
are a number of Executive Assistants with specific assignments and this position
is already filled. My reference to the furloughs was to indicate that all of the staff
will be subject to furlough. But the position will not oversee the furlough
program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That was my confusion. I, I
thought that the, you were saying that now we were gonna hire a position to take
care of the furloughs. I had asked earlier about what, what was the, the furlough
amounts between the union agreed staff that will be assessed a furlough day and
then that of the Administration. Is that something that you can help us with in
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terms of what is that dollar amount that would be reflected in terms of the
Administration and their furlough?
MS. MORRISON: In the Administration's Budget, the salary adjustment figure that
shows on Page 11-3, is $74,000, and that's a reflection of the savings from
furlough days that would be for Fiscal Year 2011-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that...
MS. MORRISON: --for the staff in this program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that figure 74,000 then reflects an
amount that would be taken away from your staffing, that would be used as that
furlough amount?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And are there percentages of that, that
are, do you have a percentage then of that area?
MS. MORRISON: The, the one day a month total, 12 days for Fiscal Year 2011, I
believe has been calculated at an approximate impact on a person's payroll of
4.6 percent. So everyone except the Mayor, in this listing is subject to that
furlough. . . . end ()Pape 1/1— 9:31 a.m.). . .
(

COUNCILM EMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then this will be also reflective in all
of your other departments as well?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: At the same 4.6 percent?
MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So if I took all of those salary amounts
and then I just did it across the board 4.6, 1 would get that total?
MS. MORRISON: With the exclusion of Police and Fire...or the unionized members of
the Police Union and the Firefighters Union. There are a few scattered HGEA
members in those two departments but, and they will be subject to furlough.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, that's all I have at this
time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Most of my questions have already been answered
but I just wanna be, be clear. Thank you, Ms. Morrison, for being here. So the
salaries that we sec reflected in 2011 for all of these positions are already reduced
by the furlough?
MS. MORRISON: The salary amount has been, the reduction has been shown in the
salary adjustment figure of 74,000 that's at the bottom of the page. So the salary
dollar amounts will be reduced in total by that amount but the salary figures are
not reduced individually.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Let me give you an example. So an Executive
Assistant making $80,800, that is before furlough or after furlough?
MS. MORRISON: Before the furlough.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Okay. So this will be further reduced by that 4.6 percent?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Ms. Morrison, just
to ask, get more clarification on the Executive Assistant so currently you show
three Executive Assistant II's, and ten Executive Assistant I's, that's with the
addition, the funding of the, the 0093 position. What is the, being that you have a
salary range of, well at least here on paper, 64,000 to 80,000, what is the
difference in scope of responsibility between EA I and the EA Ws?
MS. MORRISON: The various responsibilities mostly depend on the independence of
the person involved. If the person is working as part of a team, generally
speaking, and, and the oversight comes from the Senior Executive Assistant, then
the Senior Executive Assistant will have greater responsibility and greater
authority, and therefore, would be an EA II in that case. Also in the case of the
Public Information Office, the, the senior member of that team, for example,
would also be an Executive Assistant II. So it, it's determined by the basis of
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who's the leadership in, in a particular working group in the case of both the
Public Information Office and the overall Senior Executive Assistant. Now the
other instance that this might occur is if there's someone with a special
assignment, and has also been determined to have greater responsibility by the
Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And finally, was there any consideration to
maybe reclassify the EA l's to EA II's and maybe increase their responsibilities
rather than hiring another body or, or two for the EA I's. Was there any
consideration for that? I'm, I'm referring to what Mr. Nishiki brought up earlier
about, you know, we're, in austere times as a creative way to possibly cut back in
maybe in that fashion rather than have more bodies, then just maybe increase the
responsibilities of some our EAs. Was that discussion considered, was that
possibility considered?
MS. MORRISON: I'm not aware of any discussion to that effect. I know that the
burdens in the Office of the Mayor are tremendous and there's an awful lot of
energy and work going on. But that is a topic that I can relay to the Mayor for her
consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Let's see, that takes care of the A Account.
Members, if you have any questions, if you can forward it to the Chair. We'll get
the information from the Budget Director. The next area is the B Account,
Operations. Member Molina, questions on Operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Let's see, caught me off guard just a little bit, Chair.
Just under professional services the reduction from 184,000, on 11-4, of the
Budget Details, from 184,130 to 90,000. Can you comment on what we're
cutting back on?
MS. MORRISON: The funds in, in the professional services account by and large were
to be focused on the need, if there are needs for management audits or smaller
audits during the ongoing year. And in an effort to find places where we could
reduce the budget that was one place where a reduction was occurred.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What kind audits do you do?
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MS. MORRISON: The, the funds were in there in case there was the need for a
management audit, but as far as I know the funds have not been used for that as of
yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So no audits were done in 2010?
MS. MORRISON: Not so far.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, on 11-5, right at the top, there's a line for 6132,
professional services ...(clears throat)... I'm assuming that this reduction ...(clears
throat)... of 70,000 is the money that we've been hearing about where the
minutes, oh, I mean not the minutes, but the meetings of boards and commissions
will not be televised. Can you tell us about that?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Councilmember Baisa. The most popular request for
televising of a board or commission meeting is for the Planning Commission. As
it turns out there is a, a local organization, Maui Tomorrow that already tapes that,
that and puts it on Akaku each, each month. In looking for places to reduce the
funding again, this was a place that was a temporary reduction thinking if we
could get through a year or two without that, as long as the other organization was
already taping. And most of the other boards and commissions are relatively less
controversial or interesting to the public, perhaps that's one way of saying it, and
it was an attempt to get through what is clearly not normal times.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So the $70,000 that is budgeted for this year, have you
used it or not used it?
MS. MORRISON: No, it will be, become part of carryover savings as, you know, we're
facing a, our own shortfall of 13.7 million in Fiscal Year 2010. And so we will
not be spending those funds this year either.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So the, coming back to the audits then, that, that
would probably be carryover savings-MS. MORRISON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --if it's not used?
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MS. MORRISON: Unless something comes up that we need to, to have some sort of
investigation or audit for and I don't know that that will but at this point there's
no expectation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I want to get back to
Member Baisa's question about the boards and commissions. You know, initially
when many years ago when I started on the Council, trying to put the information
before the general public about government processes of which the Council
Meetings would be aired, and now aired live versus delayed broadcasting. And
then the other was to make sure that the other components of the community
which are your boards and commissions also get. I'm concerned that, that we
have now moved to a position and relegating that as the responsibility of
individual organizations rather than that of government making access and
information to the general public. Your comment about why you would move it
in a, in a opposite direction, I guess.
MS. MORRISON: I can only agree with you, Council Member. I, I think it's an
important responsibility of government. It's something that we take very
seriously. However, in trying to get through this particular year in trying to find
places where we could temporarily reduce funding, it was one place that we felt
we could get by another year without that expenditure. There are very few places
where I think the public gets the benefit of...I think the Council does a
tremendous job in having the public have the opportunities to see your work
going on live each day. The boards and commissions are also an important
element of government and it's, I'm hopeful that either next year when things get
better that we'll have the resources that we can to put that back into operation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then you, your comment was
that the $70,000 currently appropriated is being moved over to cost savings?

MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, no expenditure of this at all in this
current fiscal year?
MS. MORRISON: None anticipated at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So right now then there is no way
for anyone to get that, at least to, to review or view the boards and commissions
other than what you're describing as a Maui Tomorrow.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29,2010

MS. MORRISON: As far as I, I understand, Akaku has a certain responsibility also as
the public access television channel to provide information about ongoing
government activities.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: And they may choose also, to use their responsibility to probably on
request, tape some of these meetings if they turn out to be ones that are of interest
to the public.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So why was, why was this money
requested for then?
MS. MORRISON: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Why was this amount requested for in
this current fiscal year?
MS. MORRISON: At the beginning of the year, the fiscal year, a year ago, I don't think
anyone anticipated, we knew the, the economy was in a, in a decline but I don't
think we anticipated the revenue shortfall that came at the end of December 31'',
when we discovered that we had such a significant shortfall in revenue coming in
from the General Fund and other special revenue funds. When that information
came to us, we had to look for places to make sure that we don't overspend
money that we didn't actually receive.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then, Sheri, if you can just
clarify for me because my notes just mention Maui Tomorrow and, and you said
that, that was the offset for this, that you said Maui Tomorrow is doing a, a, a,
filming of the boards and commissions?
MS. MORRISON: They are taping the Planning Commission Meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And how does that get transmitted to the
general public then?
MS. MORRISON: It's my understanding that they use Akaku as a distribution.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay, thank you for that
clarification. Chair, I have no further questions at this time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Morrison, I just
wanted to go back and touch on the professional services on 11-4, that Member
Baisa I believe was asking about. What made it a great leap from 2009 to 2010,
$163,000 difference? What was the planning for that money and then it's reduced
to 90,000? Do you recall, going from-MS. MORRISON: The direct...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --21,000 to 184,000?
MS. MORRISON: The amount expended in 2009 that first column, that you see-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: --there, is actual as opposed to what's appropriated. And so the
contract was not...only a portion of the amount of that contract was expended
from '09 funds and a portion of the year of the earlier year was used so the, the
$21,000 was just a portion of the year. Then in the amount going into FY '10, the
184,000, are we on the same.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: I'm, I'm looking at the right number-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes.
MS. MORRISON: --for...that was in anticipation. There was, there was a request from
the Cost of Government Commission for the Mayor's Office to consider
developing an audit arm, and while we didn't have the capability of, of creating a
full blown program and didn't have the resources, there was simply a line item
put in should we need to, to perform management audits that there would be some
expectation that there would be resources to do so. The Cost of Government
Commission has not requested any, any particular audit so far and we haven't
identified any areas that we chose to spend those funds on especially given the
current funding situation. So that was the, the change that occurred in those
times.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Do you recall what in Fiscal Year 2009,
what the balance was, if only 21,000 was spent?
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MS. MORRISON: I don't have that information-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: --with me right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Alright, and then I just wanna go and ask a few
questions on 11-5 page on the boards and commissions. So does the County have
a contract with Akaku ahead of time as far as televising certain meetings?
MS. MORRISON: Our arrangement is that we developed a, a Request for Proposals-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: --rather than going to one provider in order to make it fair and to have
a, an open bidding process. A Request for Proposals was considered and several,
several organizations, and whoever would've provided the most appropriate and
best response to that Request for Proposals would've been the person that we
would, or the agency, or the organization. Akaku was one of those but there were
other organizations as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And the Request for Proposal would include
what particular meetings the County wanted to have coverage on?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So as part of the Request for Proposal then,
it, it was, this was provided for, or presented by the Mayor's Office, the Request
for Proposal to the different media?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And in that, the Mayor's Office decided
what meetings would be covered by the different contracts?
MS. MORRISON: The Public Information Office would work with the contractor
should, should one have been hired to lay out a schedule of,—
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: --of when the meetings that are coming up and which ones are the
most likely to be of interest to the public.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And just finally, because the Members get a
lot of feedback from the public about how, how good and convenient it is for
people in the public to watch the meetings, and they appreciate the meetings being
televised because most of them cannot come here and observe the meeting. So
wherever we can, you know, I, I'd like to see us continue but I can understand,
you know, your proposal to make cuts as part of trying to reduce the budget.
Thank you, Ms. Morrison. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I think there's separate budget allocations for
Akaku. I think the Office of Council Services do have a budget to televise-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Council Meetings as well as Committee Meetings. So...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Chairman, so after the Request for
Proposals are done, then the Council Services takes over that as far as providing
funding for certain televised.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know the process. Gayle'?
MS. REVELS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Council has a separate process for procuring
a contract for Council and Committee meetings. It's not linked to the
Administration's.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, Mr. Chairman, how, how does that work as far
as coordinating what the Mayor's Office is trying to get in contracts and what
Council Services?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Council Services, we televise Council meeting as well as
Committee meetings-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that we are Chairman's of.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and boards and commissions are the-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: The Mayor.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --responsibility of the Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Morrison, you mentioned about the Cost of
Government, and I got a question. In regards to the Cost of Government
Commission, and, and their findings and recommendations, how do you, I, I guess
follow through, follow up in regards to some of the recommendations that they
make? And, and they make good recommendations as far as trying to reduce
costs, trying to improve efficiency for this County.
MS. MORRISON: I think we have had some of the best reporting from the Cost of
Government Commissions in recent years and the report most recently that came
from them, unfortunately, came too late for us to provide any accommodation for
it in the proposed budget. A year ago, and again that was in response to their
request was this professional services account was beefed up in order to
accommodate...there was a, a proposal to expend funds that they recommended in
doing a process audit of one of our County departments. And again, once the
funding situation got as extreme as it has been, we just simply were unable to
expend those funds. But I do agree that they have come with some good
recommendations and we hope to be able to implement them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Because they talk about auditing us, you know,
departments within the County as part of the recommendation, you know. Yeah,
I, I wish we had this prior to, you know, the budget proceedings because they
come up with really good information in regards to looking at the County and,
and, you know, processes that we have. So, Members, if you would take a look at
your audits that have been done for 2009, 2008, they make recommendations in
regards to efficiency for this County. So, and one of the things that they talk
about is the Managing Director's Office, as far as the span of control so please
review the audit reports.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ...gnaw/thief..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki. I beg your pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.

...(Chuckles)... I got a question.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sheri, 11-5 more clarification. You went out for an
RFP for the boards and commission meetings.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You were allocated, or you, you allocated 70,000.
What did the RFP come in, and what was the successful bidder, who was the
successful bidder, for what amount?
MS. MORRISON: I think all of the bids were geared toward that amount. I think the
difference in the bids was based on what their service delivery would be, their
capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and, and the service level now, what do we
have for boards and commissions in regards to play time, direct meetings, what,
what is currently...
MS. MORRISON: What was in the REP?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, what was agreed upon? What we have now until
the end of the fiscal year.
MS. MORRISON: We are spending no funds until the end of the fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You've not spent any money on this?
MS. MORRISON: The intent was to go out for the RFP and do that; however, once the
funding shortfall of $13.7 million came in at the end of the fiscal year, end of the
calendar year, all departments were directed to try to save money on any
opportunity that there was before the funds were expended, otherwise we would
go over. Because the amount of money that's, that a budget is created with a
balanced revenue and expenditures as, as you obviously know, so without any
guarantee of the revenue picture being the same as we had anticipated, in fact we
know that it will be considerably less, we have to make sure that we don't spend
funds that we don't actually have. This was one case which was not optimal,
however, it's a very difficult time and some very difficult decisions had to be
made.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I wanna ask the right question that's the reason why
I'm, I'm pausing, Mr. Chairman. So, Sheri, you ask for 70,000, I guess the
Council was...thought that we're going to now, because it's the Administration's
kuleana, that these boards and commissions meetings are going to be taped. As I
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understand, Sheri, no money or the RFP did really not go up as you represented
earlier. So therefore, is it my understanding that no money was spent, the RFP
didn't go out, and so, and I don't keep track, Mr. Chairman, but I, 1, you know,
she was saying that whatever we see as far as on Akaku boards and commissions.
What was the net effect on any of these meetings that were showed or not showed
compared to what was represented to us for this 70,000 in this current fiscal
year's budget? That 1, that I really wanna know. Because obviously someone's
coming in and saying we wanna do this-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for boards and commissions. Now we heard from
Sheri that nothings been expended, so obviously no monies been expended, no
RFP went out, okay. We're thinking, we're, we're, we're depending upon that
they're going to do it. Again, especially my...find out, cause 1, I, 1, I remember
seeing, I don't know what Commission, Planning Commission maybe, so I
remember seeing someone in there, on a commission, the day that I attended,
someone taped. But are you saying that this was all Maui Tomorrow that was
doing the taping or maybe you may not know, but what is the Administration's
understanding or responsibility that now you, you're saying that Maui
Tomorrow's gonna do it? Please help me understand it.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you for your question. Let me make it clear-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. MORRISON: --that an RFP, in fact two RFP's were actually put out to the public, a
Request for Proposals, so that was done, there was every intent to review the
proposals and sign a contract with the successful applicant. However, at the time
that, that was all occurring, we were also discovering that we were short of funds.
So that's why the decision was made. It was not made because we don't want
boards and commissions to be taped, of course we want that, of course we want to
serve the public in every way we possibly can. However, there are choices that
have to be made when the funding is not there. So that was one of the decisions
that was made. We are aware that the, as I said that Maui Tomorrow makes a
practice of filming the board...the Maui Planning Commission, and since that
again is one of the most popular commissions to be taped, I'm happy that, that's
occurring. I don't, I am aware that there are other independent operators that do
tape others on occasion, and I understand that the public access television channel
has some responsibility-COUNCILM EMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
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MS. MORRISON: --to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, what, Council Members, if we want and
feel that we want the general public to be educated as far as these boards and
commissions, we thought that they were going to do it. If it is our intention,
Mr. Chairman, and they have demonstrated to us in this year's budget, that they're
not going to fund it, they have demonstrated also in last year's budget that they're
not going to do it, okay. If it is something that we wanna see as a policy decision
maker, then hopefully we don't put money in here dependent upon the
Administration to do that job for us. I think we need to understand and we may
not agree with some of the decisions that they made, but if we really wanna see it,
then let's not put it in their account because they may choose not to do it. And
that's their prerogative. But I think we need to look at how we know that these
meetings are going to be there for the general public because we feel that if you
all feel that it's important, than we need to do it differently. And I'm alright with
it. I'm not alright from the fact that in this last fiscal year, that was their policy
decision to not fulfill this part of their program. And that's all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so, let's not do it that way anymore.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. I would like to add sonic comments,
but I refrain from doing that.
COUNCILM EMBER NISHIKI: ...(Chuckles)... Well...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, if you wanna add sonic comments, I'll
yield-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to you first, you know. I guess my, just going
back to that account again on professional services, 6132, you feel that this
reduction of 94,000 this coming year, because you anticipate no audits, you
anticipate, oh, at least very few if any. So that audits, I mean 184,000, clear my
mind on that one. How many audits do we average a year and I know you've
showed that with the 2008, 2009. And it's requested by generally this body or
some other situation that would request an audit, is that correct?
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MS. MORRISON: Councilmember Victorino, these would be audits that would be
separate from the financial audit that the Council does. The Council authorizes
annually-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Financial, yeah.
MS. MORRISON: --the, the financial audit. These would not be in that category at all, it
would be...which costs several hundred thousand dollars that's a, that's a large
audit, it's an expensive and important audit. These would be more on the, on the
line of management audits of a particular problem area, and this is an excellent
opportunity sometimes to find a, a way to solve a problem by helping to define
the problem. Again, it was not a choice that we made on purpose because we
don't want to do that, it's just a, a reality that we have a significant shortfall in
revenue in the current year as well as in the coming up Fiscal 2011. And in trying
to find places where we could reduce expenses, there aren't very many places to
choose from and so that was one that was chosen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So I, if I'm correct and understanding, then
that this is all internal-MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --departmental audits that you're referring-MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --operational and all that. Okay. Okay, I just, you
know when sometimes people hear the word audit, automatically they start
thinking of financial-MS. MORRISON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --they start thinking of, and how can you reduce it,
what if there, okay. So the public is clear, it's an operational internal audit,
nothing to do with external, financial and all the other issues that really the paper
and sometimes we talk about here in this, this, in this venue, yeah.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then the other thing, I, I tend to agree with my
colleagues as far as accessibility. Yeah, I understand things are hard. Yes, I
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understand things are difficult but, yeah, Mr. Chair, when you start limiting,
sometime access to or for the public, especially when we have so many outlying
districts, we have so many people that really in the course of a regular day, work.
And 1 know many people tell me they, they like watching our meetings and other
meetings in the evening when they're rebroadcast. They may not watch it live,
but the rebroadcasting of many of these meetings do take particular attention from
the public, especially weekends and nights. 1 have some people that say they
rather enjoy it after the 10 o'clock news and catching whatever is on Akaku, that
means they having a sleepless night. So, anyhow Mr. Chair, I'll close by saying
that I would, if we were to put any monies in there, somehow like you had said
earlier, we can put in a proviso to make sure that it's used, and used for that
specific reason, maybe another alternative we can look at so. But we'll cross that
bridge when we get there, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNC1LMEMBER. BA1SA: Just a comment, Chair, you know, we recently completed
the Countywide Policy Plan and were working on the Maui Island Plan. And in
the Countywide Policy Plan, under the good governance section, I think we all
remember that there was an emphasis on being, the government being open and
transparent, and if we're going to implement the plan, then this is really not a
good way to go but, you know, if we had somebody else who wants to pay, that's
fine. The only risk I'm...we have is what if those people decide they can't do it
any more and is it their responsibility .. .(end of tape I B — 10:02 a.m.). . . to do
this? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I, I, I do have some issues, also in regards to
what we're doing now, the Countywide Plan, now we're reviewing the Maui
Island-wide Plan, and what we don't see in the Maui Island-wide Plan I...and,
and maybe Ms. Morrison can tell us when we go to the Managing Director's
Office, is in regards to the cost of the County, for the Maui, to implement the
Maui Island Plan. So I'll just leave it at that until we get to Ms. Morrison.
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair, I just wanna clarify because
this particular issue on the $70,000, it is being said that this is being passed as cost
savings. So when we look at the final tally then there will be a $70,000 amount
from this Department that shows that it is moving 70,000 to cost savings.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, when you said you had the flexibility
to look at the, the personnel amounts and your savings that way to fund it, I'm
just, just trying to make clear, there was an unfunded position of $64,000 and then
it is now reflected as a position to, to be included on your 2011 budget. So the
$64,000 that you used to pay that position that was unfunded in this current fiscal
year, that money comes from where?
MS. MORRISON: It comes from the Operating Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it comes from this budget we're
looking at then. So somewhere in this budget that we're, we're now asking
questions about, you found $64,000 to pay for that position that was not funded?
MS. MORRISON: The position was already filled and the Council chose to unfund it
last year, rather than leave the position unfilled, the Mayor chose to fill the
position. Yes, there had to be, at the time that decision was made and again it was
before the revenue shortfall information was coming up, it was earlier in the fiscal
year, there was anticipated that there would be full funding in the Mayor's
Operating Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But my questions is, is that
funding for that position coming from your cost savings in your operations'? So
that you said you have $70,000 that we appropriated but that's not being used, and
it's going to cost, carryover. Does that become part of your cost savings that you
take an amount and you can put it to the position?
MS. MORRISON: That's certainly not the way that it, it happened. It happened in the
reverse order. The position was filled, and then later it was determined that there
was revenue shortfall and some of the decisions that were made included reducing
the Operating Budget, but yes, that's correct. The money...the entire Program
Budget for the Office of the Mayor and for any program in the, in the County is
looked at in terms of one total dollar amount. If you look at the ordinance, each
department and each program has one bottom line dollar amount.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: So the funds are-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So if...
MS. MORRISON: --spended
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: If there were-MS. MORRISON: --expended that way.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --no other changes in your Operation
Budget except a change of the $64,000 position and a reducement [sic] of $70,000
in your Operating, it would reflect that, that S70,000 was used to pay that 64 then.
MS. MORRISON: If that were the only change, yes, that's what it would reflect.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just trying to simplify it so I, I
understand. is that, that would be the case?
MS. MORRISON: It's not how it happened, but that's, if that's what you're trying to,
your point is-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. I'm trying to simplify...
MS. MORRISON: --that we reduced the Operating Budget by a certain amount, yes,
that's correct, we did. However, there were savings in other categories as well.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO‘OHALAHALA: Okay. I understand, but originally when
I asked about the 70,000 you said it went to carryover savings so I'm just trying to
establish now, what happened to the 70,000, and so essentially the 70,000 could,
could be used to pay this new position.
MS. MORRISON: If the money existed, however as, you know, we have a 13.7 million
shortfall-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: --for the fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MS. MORRISON: The other thing that happened-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Sheri,-MS. MORRISON: --is as you'll see it-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO‘OHALAHAEA: --I think you answered my question.
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MS. MORRISON: --in the beginning of the Ordinance, there's a carryover savings dollar
amount. The Budget Office calculates that based on savings reported by each
department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Morrison. I was just gonna ask the Budget
Director to provide us with carryover savings information, but I think you
answered that question. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILM EMBER MEDEIROS: No further questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, just so I understand maybe from Staff, because
it's a board or commission, which falls under the Administration, can the Council
put it in their budget to fund and go for an REP or is that something, is that
stepping over the bounds?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can add anywhere in the budget, whatever you want. But
they need to find the money.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I, I, I, I wanna, I wanna find the authority that
would feel-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --just as Gladys is saying that you we're-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --putting this in our General Plan or whatever, and
saying that it want, it's gotta be transparent and I think that this is one program
that allows boards and commissions. I mean, I was, I was up in-CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --Kula, and attending a, a Burial Commission and I
went, wow, all of these things that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, just to answer your question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
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CI LAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, yes, we can, we can proviso the money so that it doesn't
go anywhere but only to, to that...whatever we proviso that dollars to, to go to, so
yes, we can.
COUNCILM EMBER NISHIKI: No, but then there would be, there would be a
department, or say it's Council that would be in charge of making sure that, that it
occurs. And my question was, Mr. Chairman, because it is a board and
commission which is normally the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --prerogative of the Administration, can we put that in
the Council's budget and fund and, and make sure that it occurs, that was my
question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We can find out.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I wanna know that answer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we can find out.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then we'll get back to you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER

Thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, B Account, any more questions on the
B Account? Seeing none, the C Account which is equipment, Page 11-6.
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. You know, there seems to
be only the leased equipment of copy machines, but what I wanted to ask the, the
Mayor's Office, are the 35,000, it's just to renew the leases or is, because under
the column it's under replacement, or are those purchases?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MS. MORRISON: It's my understanding that that's a lease, it's an ongoing lease for the
copy machine in the Mayor's Office.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. It's for two, right? Because under quantity it
has two. So it's for two machines?
MS. MORRISON: Yeah, we have a, a larger one and a smaller one, yes, that's true.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. But they are leases not purchases?
MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the, equipment. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and, and, and, and Sheri, you know, I, I, I realize
that, you know, we give you a, a, a hunk of money and you can, you can do
whatever you wanna, but I still feel like I gotta do my job if I got some areas that I
have some concern with, so I just wanna make that really clear. But again, this
may seem like I'm, I'm, I'm, I'm trying to go at you but it's not. I wanna know,
under the Program Budget, Mr. Chairman, 13-13, objectives for Fiscal Year 2011,
under the fourth bullet, it says facilitate, and, and that's a important word,
community involvement through boards and commissions and community
meetings. Again,-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --maybe I'm, maybe I'm nitpicking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What page, Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page, Mr. Nishiki? No, more 13-13.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There is. In the, in the bound book. This guy, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This is the... Program Budget isn't it,-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --Mr. Chairman?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Am I wrong?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And if I'm wrong, please correct me.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Under,—
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But if I'm right,—
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --under objectives.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --then I think I'm...got it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thirteen what?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thirteen, thirteen-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thirteen-three.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --three, three, three.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thirteen-three, yeah, okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(Chuckles)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, there's no 13-13-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thirteen-three.
COUNCILM EMBER VICTORINO: --that's what I'm trying to say.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, and that's why you're,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --you're, you're completely right, Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
something you're looking at.

Well, that's alright I'm just trying to find

COUNCILM EMBER NISHIK• Under the fourth bullet, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sheri, facilitate community involvement through boards
and commissions, and community meetings. I mean, what, what, what, what,
what are you talking about, about facilitating? Is it, isn't maybe airing theses
meetings and things what these objectives for the Fiscal Year 2011 is?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki, and I appreciate the questions because it
gives us a chance to clarify.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, I think that the Office of the Mayor, in normal times, would
absolutely want to film all boards and commission meetings that we can, can
possibly afford. This particular objective talks about facilitation, however, it's
talking about our executive assistants working with different boards and
commissions that we staff. We staff certain boards and commissions, the Salary
Commission, the Cost of Government Commission, the Committee on Status of
Women, and our staff work directly with those commissions. The other is that a
number of our staff attend community meetings and help to provide information
in those, those venues, as you attend community meetings yourself and have your
staff do that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, if you have any questions
regarding all three accounts, if you can forward it to the Chair. I'll get that
information from you from the Administration. At this time, the Chair would like
to move into the Office of Economic Development. And at this time the Chair
would like to ask either the Managing Director or Ms. Tegarden if there are any
more comments that need to be made.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you, Chair, I, I made my comments earlier and I look forward
to questions, thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, on the A Account for Office of
Economic Development, any questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Not so much on the, the salaries but more on the
Program Budget and the objectives for Fiscal Year 2011 for the, for
Ms. Tegarden. Good, good morning, Ms. Tegarden, and thank you-MS. TEGARDEN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --for your opening comments. It's a very positive to
read in the paper about the, at least the film industry aspect which you've talked
about so it seems like we're making some real headway there. With regards to
your objectives, Page 13-5 for the Members information in the Program Budget,
assist, in the second bullet point, assist in the attraction, development, and
expansion of new and developing businesses and industries, including renewable
energy through partnerships with the community and other agencies to ensure
economic diversification. How are we making headway in that or, or how do you
plan, how do we plan to make headway in this upcoming fiscal year with regards
to that? Because I know, we're, we're having to do some cuts, and will you still
be able to, achieve this objective in spite of the revenue challenges so to speak?
:

MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. Yes, we are very fortunate to have
wonderful nonprofit partners with whom we partner including Maui Economic
Development Board who does, a, a lot of outreach to the high-tech industry
through our work with the, the Energy Expo and with our Maui County Energy
Alliance partners we are constantly looking to see what kind of businesses would
suit Maui County. We do not want to invite businesses here that are not going to
be good for our community. But through our partners including MEDB, MEO,
and, and many of the other projects that we help fund, we are able to continue
diversifying our economy, and Maui County Farm Bureau and those partners.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Yeah, I was interested in asking that, Mr. Chair,
because, you know, Maui County, unfortunately, when it conies to business it sort
of had a negative reputation as being maybe not being as business friendly. So I
was just interested in finding out how, you know, through the Office of Economic
Development we will be able to sort of soften that somewhat negative reputation
we may have with some people from the outer islands or maybe even here in
terms of business here in Maui County. Because the, the fact of the matter is the
economy I think is gonna be the number one issue with this upcoming election for
everybody, so I'm just wanting to know what we're gonna, how we're gonna do,
achieve these objectives in spite of the revenue challenges that, that we have. But
I, I certainly appreciate the, you know, what this Department has done thus far but
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I'm trying to be optimistic here that these objectives can be reached in spite of the
lack of revenue. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Ms. Tegarden.
do believe that the Economic Development Division does a very good job.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: I do, however, have a very relevant question. Looking at
the objectives for Fiscal Year 2011, the fourth one down says support workforce
development efforts to provide a competitive workforce in Maui County.
Associated with that is my concern about the job situation here on Maui. I mean,
we all acknowledged that we have some real serious concerns about how are we
gonna get people back to work. Can you kinda give us an idea of what your
Department is doing and where you're headed in order to try and help this?
Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. It is a difficult year, we all, we all
realize that. Through our workforce development initiative, we were able to
secure additional ARRA funding to reach out to dislocated workers as well as
youth to do job training programs. Again, we have our Maui County Business
Resource Center, our Kuhao Business Center, and I, I gave some of those
numbers earlier. We work closely with MEO's Business Development
Corporation. Right now we're seeing a very large number of people coming in
who are interested in starting their own businesses or small businesses who are
interested in ensuring that they're doing what they can to, to maintain, you know,
their livelihood. So we work very closely through those centers, through our
SCORE representatives at the Business Center. We've also increased our number
of workshops that we do, both...we were in Lanai, earlier this year and outreach
to Molokai and East Maui as well. And with our Got Choice Think Local
campaign, one of the perks of that campaign is that we do advertising for our
businesses that arc involved with that program as well. So we're trying in all of
our areas whether it's through our nonprofit partners, or workforce development,
or some of the initiatives that we have in our own office, to make sure that we're
doing what we can for our small businesses and, and our, our large businesses as
well to see what we can do to help them through this economic time.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. It sounds like, you know, a lot of effort.
What I'm trying to find out, and I would appreciate this if you could give it to us,
would be some kind of a consolidated report of what are the number of jobs that
have been created through these efforts. I think that's a really important piece of
information. 'Cause it gives us a cost benefit of the money spent and the bang for
the buck. Chair, that can come later.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's just a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I'm looking on
Page 11-13.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, just concentrate please-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: On the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --on 11-7 first.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. You're still there?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I have no questions for that,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Tegarden, good
morning.
MS. TEGARDEN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And thank you for being here. On Page 11-7, your
position that one after the other shows a, a decrease of change. So were there,
that...those salary positions reduced in salary? Or was it some kind of other
action?
MS. TEGARDEN: Oh.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and this is for your Clerk Stenographer III, and
your Clerk, both III's.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. Actually, these two position are
partially funded with Federal Workforce Investment funding. So we made that
change this year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and that's because the Federal funding resulted in
having to reduce the positions?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, the, the Federal funding actually supplements the, the overall
salary. So the overall salary is still the, the 38,000, however, only 22,000 is paid
by County funds, the balance is paid by Federal funds.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. And, right, I did see your footnote in partially
granted funding. However, the position above that one doesn't have that footnote,
so what was the reduction for that position, the, the reason?
MS. TEGARDEN: Our apologies, it's the same reason.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: It should have had both of those listed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Alright, thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Ms. Tegarden, if, if both are funded by some
Federal or State, these are not Civil Service positions?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct, everyone in OED actually is appointed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine, thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, you know, if there is any
area as said by Mr. Molina this morning that this County needs help in, it, it is in
Economic Development. We see a bit of recovery occurring but if in County
government, we continue to just maintain the same amount of employees in
Economic Development, I don't really see it moving forward. We may give a lot
of grants, I know we do that. But, you know, we talk about looking at industries
that can use some help, Mr. Chairman. And, and, and I see us giving like crumbs,
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perhaps to the agriculture industry that we see many people, you know, we're
talking about taxing people, we're talking about taking water away or giving them
more water, whatever. You know, how really does government really help these
people that wanna do agriculture?
I, I brought up the, the concern on Molokai that at one time we had the
Agriculture Specialist go over there, install agricultural pipes and everything else
and people were growing a lot of food, but again, the marketing plan was
inefficient, so therefore people gave up. And, and, and I don't know what
happened to those ag lines that they have in Hawaiian Homes or whatever. Tom
Miura I think was the person that went over there and did that for them.
So, Deidre, you know, despite that you say we want to help, really, and then you
highlight, oh, this TV program or this, whatever, and, and so, yeah, for that one
shot in the arm, Mr. Chairman, and then, and then they film and then it's gone.
You don't really have something that's constant. And, and to me it's like we're
looking at renewable type of economic development, and, and, and to me with a
12-month growing season here and the, the, the, the push, you pushed, buy local,
whatever, okay. You're pushing all of this. But yet I think we heard from one
farmer where, where how much of that product that you grow is actually marketed
on, on Maui. And he was saying that it goes somewhere else. So really, you,
you, you may say that you're doing a job but shouldn't you be doing a better job
than what you're doing and is that because of the lack of personnel that hinders
you, and also because of this it hinders Maui County?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you--.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: My question.
MS. TEGARDEN: --for the question. You know, being raised in Japan, I think we can
always do better. We can always to a better job and every day we get up, you
know, it's an opportunity to do better for our community. I think that we have
many constants in our economic development. We have our visitor industry, we
have our diversification through efforts from our office, office as well as our
nonprofit partners. That's why we have our nonprofit partners is because we
can't necessarily do, be everything to everybody and do everything all on our
own. So I think Maui County is very fortunate to have the nonprofits that we do
so that they are able to be our arms within the community. We also heard what
you had stated about the agricultural farmers saying that a lot of their product is
shipped off island for sale. So we were talking about it in one of our meetings
and decided that that's something we should put some efforts into to, to make sure
that our local stores are able to accommodate our, our farmers produce.
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You know, one of the issues is, is that some of the farmers aren't able to give the
consistent product and that's why the stores don't, aren't able to take their
product, but many of our restaurants do, and many of the stores do, and Whole
Foods has over 60 of our local produce farmers in the market. So yes, we can
always do better and we can always do more and in these economic times I think
we're doing more with less but I'm very, you know, proud to sit up here on behalf
of the Office of Economic Development to share the things that we are doing.
And Economic Development, you're talking about a shot in the arm here and
there but that's, that's all part of economic development too. You do need those
shots in the arm and the shots in the arm from our film office are coming more
often than not. So I, you know, I think as we move forward, yes, we always need
to, to do more and we're very thankful for our partners, our nonprofit partners
who are our arms, reaching out into the community to ensure that we're doing the
best that we can, and we always strive to do better.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman? Deidre, you don't have to sell anything
to us.
MS. TEGARDEN: Oh, no.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, I'm just telling you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm, I'm, I'm kind of giving you the opening but
sometimes you, you wanna be defensive. I'm giving you the opening to maybe
say, yeah, we need to look in these other areas, such as marketing, such as
transportation, for agriculture products. If I want to tell people to grow more
mangoes or whatever, you know, but it so happens that during the mango season
is when you got a lot of fresh fruits during the summer time that are coming,
Berries, cantaloupes, whatever, melons, whatever, peaches, grapes, whatever,
nectarines, apricots, you know, that are, that are coming in to Maui. So therefore,
if the mango grower which is, which we grow great mangoes here, I just looking
one crop, okay. At one time, Bill Pfeil from Molokai was shipping to Canada
because he had a market there. But, you know, how much do we help 'cm, you
know, Bill Pfeil wants to send strawberry papayas to Canada, how much do we
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help 'em, you know, and, and now he, he gave up and he sold it and, and, and
went.
But this is what I'm saying, you know, we have, or we want to encourage people
to, to grow. Maybe we want five different families to, to grow in Haiku, ten acres
each, or five acres each, and, and, and when they compang [sic] and, and get it all
together, then they have enough to make it so that they can have a crop that can
ship somewhere else. But this is where the marketing and the, the transportation
area, Mr. Chairman, is lacking, is, is, is lacking, Deidre. And, and, and this is all
I'm saying is that, you know, I wanna give you position because I think that you
need help, you know. And, and yet, your, your song and dance isn't, isn't saying
yeah, I, I could use help because I wanna do it and I, I think we can do more. But
you're only one person, and you wanna give it to the nonprofits or whatever,
that's fine. But I'm saying that I believe if we're gonna do economic
development then, you know, this area needs to be bolstered with money.
We cannot talk with one side of our mouth and then not give from the other side.
You're wasting my time, wasting everybody's time. You know, if, if we're gonna
do economic development, then you need a shot, you need to put money into it or
whatever, you know, you went to China, fine. You know, I hope that, you know,
you, you've got somebody to come and visit, but meanwhile, I think we've got a
valuable area which is land, which is 12-month area, 12-month season to grow
that other people can't. They got snow coming. So they, you ain't got nothing
over there but they gotta eat. Those people choose to, we can go and send stuff
over there if we take advantage of it. But I don't think government is doing
enough in that area. And, and, and what I'm really focusing in on is, you know,
somebody saying, oh well, you take the water or, you know, sugar's going out,
whatever, pineapple went out, thank, thank God we got somebody else to take,
take, take care of it. But we got land that's available. Personally, myself, I'd
rather see it stay green than concrete as a way for economic development. I, I, I, I
mean this happens but it's like, that's why Maui's special, Deidre.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But if you don't do it, we don't do it, we're gonna see,
in place of it, concrete, guarantee, guarantee.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I, I, I've said it but it's like I, I, I wanna help you. I
wanna give you money.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIK1• But you don't, you don't have anything to justify that
you need more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, I think we heard loud and clear from you, in
regards to trying to support economic development, especially in the farming
industry. Really I, I, I don't know what is hampering the farmers here on Maui in
regards to their marketing. You know, what can County government do to help
farmers have their products sell in the State of Hawaii'? Maybe that's a good
question to ask Ms. Tegarden in regards to that, you know. How do we help the
farmers to keep their produce on Maui and, and within the State of Hawaii, and
what can we do to support them even more?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, we don't even market poi, you know, how
much we can market poi and dry land taro-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr., Mr. Nishiki...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and chips.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, let Ms. Tegarden answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: People can, people wanna.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Tegarden.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. And my apologies if I seemed defensive earlier, that was
not my intent. You know I, we have so many wonderful things in Maui County.
We have so many wonderful, so much wonderful produce and we do need to
make that, that effort to continue to help our farmers, I don't know that I am the
person to sit up here and say today what we need to do to help the farmers. I
think it's pulling together a group of them and, and, you know, we've done this in
the past. We do, you know, we, we need to make things viable for the farmers
whether it's, it's, you know, water rates, but we also need to help them find the
labor. So many fourth and third, and fourth generation farmers are telling us that
they, they don't have the labor to move forward. They need to be able to produce
the quality, . . .(end of tape 2A — 10:34 a.m.). . . rather the quantity rather, to get
into our stores.
But yes, I agree that we do need to put effort into making sure that the produce
that we, that is currently grown locally gets into our local stores so that our local
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residents and our visitors can purchase it and our farmers can make a living on, on
their land. So that is something we look forward to working on in the upcoming
year and if Council is, wishes to add, you know, funding and, and things like that
we would certainly, we would certainly welcome it, but we did not put anything
in there for that this year because of the economic times that we are seeing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Ms. Tegarden, for
that clarification. And let's get real, Mr. Nishiki, I can say has great ideas, but
he's also, sometime fantasizing too much. You hit the nail on the head, the first
thing that holds us back is that word, labor. Secondly, it's we're 2,500 miles in
the middle of the Pacific Ocean. Either we grow it for ourselves, or shipping
costs will always be astronomical. It's cheap but to grow it in Honduras,
Nicaragua, Venezuela, you name it they can grow it cheaper, closer, so let's get
real there's a global market out there. Okay, why do you think we are, today
where we are, because our forefathers realized about 40 years ago, I was told, we
would no longer have sugarcane and pineapple in this State. Forty years ago I
was told that as a kid, one day it will be gone. And it has come to fruition.
To get farmers to work, I agree, it's a back breaking job. I did pineapple. I had a
farm, my dad made me...up 5 o'clock in the morning before you go to school,
feed the animals, get all the things done, get ready, and go to school, 5:00 a.m., so
you get up at 4:30. I did it for many years as a young man. I know how back
breaking, how difficult it is, Mr. Chair, okay. So let's get real. How many of us
are gonna raise our children to be a farmer? You gotta have the passion, the
desire, I see many like people coming here like Warren and the small farmers that
come here, big and small, wanting to make a, make a, make a go of it. Waters an
issue, land, tax, all this is an issue, Mr. Chair. You know, but we do have a more,
more, more pressing issue that's called transportation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino, can you come back to the, the A Account, I, I
know the Chair had,—
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, see and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know,...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that's the problem here, you know, some guys
can go off and when then I finally get to the end, I'm stopped. Okay, fine. I'll
stop.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: You got any questions on the A Account.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I'm, I'm just saying, Mr. Chair, you know,
others can say what they wanna say and then when it comes to me, 'cause I'm at
the end-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I, understand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I get cut off. So that's fine, I will live with that,
and, you know, and, Mr. Chair, that's the way life is. But the reality is, know
your facts. I've been a business man in this community for 35 years and I've
lived here all my life. I understand the dynamics.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh. . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I question whether others do, but that's their
kuleana. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I will stop right here now-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and let you go on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The previous speaker talked about the support
through Economic Development in, in regards to employee. You know, if the
Department require more employees to support economic development here on
Maui. And he had gone off and talked about different things and, and I should
have stopped him there. And, Members, be aware I gonna stop you guys from
now on. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fine. So long as you do it for one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions on the A Account? If not, we'll go to the
B Account. Members, on the B Account, we'll stop, and we'll not take any of the
grants, any of the County grants. So it's a short page, maybe three quarters ways
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of for the B Account. And again, we're not gonna take any County grants and,
for Ms. Tegarden at this time. We'll do it on April e, where we will discuss
County grants the whole day. So, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Well, well, you took the wind out
of my sails on that one. I had most of my questions related to the grant, but that's
okay. Nothing major, other than on the 11-8, it might sound really small but
janitorial services...how did I find it, yeah. You had zero for the Molokai
Economic Development Cultural Program. And you had zero again for, I guess,
yeah. I guess my question is how are you guys making do without janitorial
services? It may sound small, unless you have that those, those funds allocated
elsewhere. You're not, you're not cleaning up the offices yourselves I hope, are
you?
MS. TEGARDEN: No, we're, we're not that dedicated.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ...(chuckles)...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I mean I know we wanna cut back on these austere
times but, you know, there, there are some limits. But I, I just wanted to find out.
MS. TEGARDEN: Actually, we, yes, we have, we're in One Main Plaza, so One Main
Plaza provides janitorial services.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All part of the rental.
MS. TEGARDEN: As part of the rent-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And I know...
MS. TEGARDEN: --so that's the way we're providing jobs.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And I know our, our rent is going up another 11,000 or
so, yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: From 133 to 144,000, whew. I hope they do a good
job cleaning up the place, anyway. That's all I have, Chair, for B Account.
Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No. Thank you, Chair, not from this part, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, just a real quick question on
services, other services, what, what does that represent...on, 11-8,-MS. TEGARDEN: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --under services?
MS. TEGARDEN: Other services are, are miscellaneous services including if there is a,
a large copying job that we might have. For instance, with our Maui County
Energy Alliance Plan, we needed to get multiple, hundreds of, of copies for the
Energy Expo. If, so things like that fall under other services or some of our
advertising, we took, we don't have a lot of advertisement that we do, but we do it
for Mayor's, for the Small Business Awards Dinner, or for if we need to put out a
RFP. So we, we put that all together under other services instead of trying to, to
break it out separately.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the, the only real major
change in this particular section is your, your lease or your rental then?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Deidre, you know, we're paying this 144,000
that is projected, I, I guess it's an increase, Mr. Chairman. Is that just for your
Department?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. That is for the Office of Economic Development and that
includes our...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: At One Main Plaza?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, am I to understand, Mr. Chairman, that the other
departments that also rent there, also will be representing what their portion of
that total rent is?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, not for them, maybe it is Economic
Development, where we can spurn jobs, but I, I, I think we asked last year, I don't
know if we were that specific, but I think...is this Administration embarking on
looking at building our own facility? I mean we purchased, didn't we purchase
the post office?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, you know, despite with this asbestos, or this
is a great place to store old, old files or whatever, and it looks nice because it's
just one story or, you know, there's some green grass growing in between the
concrete that's cracking or whatever, so it's green. Really, I think we need to ask
this Administration that if we don't start now in looking and, and planning for
County facility, I think this is getting exorbitant now. Then we heard the Liquor
Control Board is in HGEA. You know, we've got our licensing people there at
A&B Property or whatever. I don't know where else we've got people located.
Oh, I think we've got some Human Services down by the old bank in Kahului
also.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: We've got an arm there, and I don't know where else
but I'm sure we've got a lot. I, I think it's high time that we, we acknowledge it
rather than seeing us pay more and more rent and, and yet we've got perhaps land
that we can embark on developing for housing our County services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, and, and maybe sometime in the near
future if we can have maybe the Managing Director provide us with some updates
regarding the campus and, and office spaces I guess, the study that was completed
last year, sometime.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (Inaudible)...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. It's gonna be another venue on that. Okay, Members...
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. Ms. Tegarden, and, and we're going up
to what page, so that we don't get into grants.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Up to Page 8, 11-8.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Eleven-eight.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, so just that page we're talking about.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Nothing, further than that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep, the rest is all grants.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. No questions at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Tegarden, you have any equipment
purchases? I don't see any.
MS. TEGARDEN: We do not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. That's all for Ms. Tegarden, A, B, C account. At
this time the Chair is gonna take a, our midmorning break. Fifteen minutes, we'll
be back at 11:00. Thank you. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:45 a.m.
11:01 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, we just had news this morning, that in the WAM
Committee, the WAM Committee decided to take 50 percent of the County's

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010

TAT. So it hasn't gone to Conference Committee yet. So I would suggest the
viewing audience, as well as ourselves to writing testimonies, as well as contact
our State Legislators to say how important it is for us to maintain our TAT, for all
of the four counties. So it's another uphill battle for us in regards to dealing with
this Fiscal Year 2011 Budget. Okay, we concluded the Office of the Mayor, and
we'll go directly to the Managing Director's Department, Department of
Management. And at this time the Chair would like to first recognize our Budget
Director. Mr. Pablo, comments.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. I would just like to make some, some
general comments about putting together this year's budget. We've already had
one week of budget deliberations, we'll be having another three weeks and go up
to about, about the end of April 30 th . We are in our third year of cost cutting. In
Fiscal Year '09, we, we did some cost cutting by trimming expenses. We have
trimmed supplies, we, we trimmed where, where we can and in, in travel, we've,
we've curtailed train, training also.
In the second year, Fiscal Year '10, when you look at the budgets, you'll, you'll
see that we put, postponed quite a bit of equipment purchases. When you look at
this year's budget, you'll find that there's hardly any equipment in the budget.
Even our, our Police and Fire Departments have taken out equipment from their
budgets. So what's left in the third year of cost cutting, are some very significant
items. And you can see from the discussions of last week, and of this morning
there's very significant items but this is where the cuts have to be.
We faced about a month ago, Finance Director, Kalbert Young, and I faced you
and mentioned that there's a 14 million shortfall this year. We have to find ways
to cut in the current budget, Fiscal Year '10, especially in the General Funds. In,
for Fiscal Year '11, we face a $53 million shortfall. We've already, like I've said,
we've already done the travel, the training, the supplies, we've lowered the, we
lowered the equipment, postponed them, we've lowered the, the, the inventory
levels. So what's left are very significant items and, and you can see where the
discussions are going. What we try to do was balance the budget, do an approach
where we would increase revenue to about the same level as last year, and then
the rest would have to be from cuts. So that's, that's where we are today. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Pablo. Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And as you can tell I have two hats that I
wear in the County of Maui as the Managing Director but also as the Department
Head for the Department of Management. And the Department of Management
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has particular operations and divisions associated with it including Geo Services,
or GIS, and Management Information Systems, or MIS. Mr. Bill Medeiros who
serves as the Geographic Services Manager, and Mr. Jacob Verkerke, who serves
as the Information Systems Manager are here today and will provide overviews of
their operations and budgets.
The Administration Program in the Department of Management has
responsibilities related to supporting the work of the Mayor and the Mayor's
Office, as well as responsibilities related to overseeing the security systems in
County buildings, ADA regulations, energy issues before the PUC and
coordination of the County's Capital Improvement Program. As a result of the
economic downturn, and our shortfall in revenue, the overall budget proposal for
the Department of Management has been reduced this year by over $146,000.
And we are proposing no expansion positions.
In the Administration Program, we are proposing a reduction of $29,000 out of a
total request of just over 931,000. While the budget details show ten positions in
the Administration Program, you may recall that two of those positions are not
funded. These are Civil Service positions; they are not appointed positions. And
these two Executive Assistant positions are kept in place in order to have a
position for, there are two Administration Director and a Deputy Director that
have return rights to the Department of Management, Administration Program,
and this dates back to the Apana Administration.
As you may recall, the Energy Program in the Department was merged with the
Administration Program last year. The Management Information Systems
program budget is reduced this year by $113,000. As you know, this program has
responsibility for commuter...computer information and information technology
that is essential to County operations and communication. The website, software,
equipment linkages, so on.
The Geo Services, or Geographic Analysis and Cartographic Services budget is
reduced by just under $4,000. This program also plays a key role in information
technology that continues to grow in importance. Behind the scenes, but
extremely valuable. This supports, this unit supports other GIS users in County
government and throughout the community. All staff in the Department of
Management will be subject to a one day a month furlough in the proposed
budget, that will, the resulting savings are 29,000 in the Administration Program,
71,000 in MIS, 14,000 in Geo Services for a total of $114,000. Mr. Chair, if
you'd like I can have further overview coming from the MIS and GIS Programs,
if you prefer that now or later.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: What the Chair, intend, intend to do is to take it as noted on
Page 10-11, we'll go to Management Program, which is yours, and then I'll go to
MIS, and then finally Geographic Analysis and Cartographic Services Program.
So, when we bring up those areas then, you know, have them give us some
comments. Members, on the A Account, for Management Program. Member
Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Just in Management, the
question I had for you, Ms. Morrison, is the CIP Coordinator, this year's request
is for a full year of funding 'cause there's the 79,000 last year was just a partial
funding of the position.
MS. MORRISON: It was an estimate of the cost of the position but once it was filled, the
person that was hired had, was a hire up, they were already making a certain level
of pay and in order to transfer them that was the actual salary that was, was for
them. So that's why the dollar amount is increased.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I was curious you mentioned about return
rights of a couple of people from the Apana Administration which is quite a
number of years ago. How long, and, and explain to me how return rights, how
long do they have? I mean, I, I thought I'd heard year or two, but now I'm, you
know, you're saying 18...8 years ago maybe, I don't know. I mean, can you give
me an idea of what return rights and how long they last as far as the individuals
that you're referring to?
MS. MORRISON: Well, I'm sure there's a lot of technical information-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well.. .
MS. MORRISON: --that come from DPS but I'll give you what I-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: An overview-MS. MORRISON: --understand of it. ...(chuckles)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I think that's what the public would like to
know, the overview,-MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --not the technical aspects, please.
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MS. MORRISON: At the end of, of Administration, a Mayor's Administration, in the
case of these two people, one is currently the Director of the Department of
Transportation, one is the Deputy Director of the Department of Finance. Both of
those people had Executive Assistant positions in the Managing Director's Office,
in the Apana Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: In the next Administration, the Arakawa Administration, they were
both appointed to positions in that Administration, although not immediately in
the case of one, it was later on became the CDBG Coordinator and in the case of
the current Director of Department of Transportation, he was appointed as the
Deputy Director. So that, that return right was a part of that appointment that
they, they could come back to their, their current positions. That's automatic in
the case of a director or deputy, if they are a senior member of a department. In
the case of the other person I think it was a decision made by the Mayor at that
time that that person would have return rights at the end of his administration. So
they have one day in, in, in this case the new Mayor, Mayor Tavares came in, and
appointed both of those people to her Administration as well. They returned for a
day to the Department of Management and then went back out into her
Administration. And so it starts over.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, interesting, interesting. And, and, and, the,
and, I think I heard you say these were Civil Service positions?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, that's correct. That's why they have return rights too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That would be the only ration, the only reason
why-MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --is because they're Civil Service. If other
directors are appointed and then after...cause we know there's a lot of change so
those people are at will.
MS. MORRISON: Right. Directors, and, and deputies are appointed positions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. And, and they're at will, right.
MS. MORRISON: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. So I just wanted that
clarification because I think the public, you know, would have gotten really like
what's going on, you know, so, so long as they Civil Service, they come back one
day, this continues until the end of this Administration, or if they decide to go
back.
MS. MORRISON: It, it...their job is guaranteed at the end of this Administration, should
they not be appointed again, or the, the by either the current Mayor or if there is a
new Mayor. So they would return to the Department of Management at which
point we would obviously have to do a budget amendment. But the positions are,
are available for them to fill.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. That was my next question, how do
you find the money if it's not here, it's zero. Okay, you send me a budget
amendment and we've done that. I'll, I'll yield to my colleagues, Mr. Chair,
thank you very much for allowing me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sheri, I think for a long time the concern has been this
Countywide CIP Coordinator, and now that it's been filled, how does that person
now direct CIPs Countywide?
MS. MORRISON: This position has been one I have wanted to see filled in the County
of Maui for some time and we're happy that it has been filled. The position
doesn't actually direct the Department's CIP budgets, in fact, or their projects that
still up to the director of that department to make sure that the projects get done.
But the position in this particular case came in and, what was it, September
...(clears throat)... excuse me, and was immediately available to assist the
departments in putting together their proposed budgets for this, this particular
Fiscal Year 2011. And when I say assist, they can sit down with each department
heads, the staff that actually do the capital, capital projects in those departments,
the engineers and speak that language and sit down with them and say, okay, are
you really ready, have you done the steps that are necessary, are we ready to go
on this, is this more important that this one, and have that conversation in a way
that ensures that we've got projects that are in the budget that are really ready to
be, so that we don't have a bunch of lapsing funds, especially in a year like this.
We want projects to go out the door quickly because we wanna create the jobs,
and also provide the infrastructure that we obviously need. So that was one key
part of her job. She's also assisted some of the departments that don't have
capital improvement expertise in advising them on some of the design and
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permitting kinds of issues and helping to move things along. She provides
overviews about the capital improvement process to community groups or the
wastewater community working group. And one of the other tasks that has been
assigned is to work with the departments to make sure they close out old projects
so that we don't have old projects that have a few remaining dollars still
encumbered from an inactive project to get those projects closed out. And also
reviewing bond funded projects to make sure that we are prepared for the, a bond
issue that we expect to be doing later on in the next fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So how way, may we now see the CIP projects become
a reality? How, how, how is this person now, can you give me a story on, on
what has occurred now because of this?
MS. MORRISON: In the case of, I think it's a man...it's a better managed program. It'll
become increasingly better managed as she's in the job longer. She's only been
there a short time. We'll have more opportunity to have reviews at the, at the
executive level so the departments are explaining where they are and where they
are with the project that may be delayed. She can step in and help them because
of her own expertise. Again, the project is their responsibility but if she has a
particular time or effort to problem solve or communicate with a consultant that,
that may not be communicating well with someone, it's a real opportunity to have
a troubleshooter in there to move things along more rapidly.
One of the other issues is establishing best practices. We wanna have some kind
of session with those engineers and division heads that work on capital projects
and sit down and develop best practices approach so that all departments,
including those that don't have that expertise have in the...a reference source so
that they can see what are the steps I need to go through every time. And then
there are some of course that are dependent on the particular project. So she'll be
working on that also in the coming year so that our, all of our projects will be
better managed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So she would basically have at her disposal, all the CI
projects...CIP projects within the entire County, that is her job? To make sure
that it's happening?
MS. MORRISON: Her job...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This has been the problem.
MS. MORRISON: It's not her responsibility to make sure the, the projects happen.
That's the, as I said each director of each department, that's still their

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010

responsibility to make sure their, their department is functioning and getting the
work done. But she can assist, she can help them develop better tools, she can
work with them to ask the right questions, she can make sure that when they give
a presentation to the Mayor that they have it, and they have answers to the
questions that the Mayor has. So she's in a coordinating role, a troubleshooting
role, and as I said, a developing better management practices.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So let me ask you this question. In this, in this fiscal
year, how may we see what monies that we may float in, in regards to bond
become a reality?
MS. MORRISON: Well, there's a proposed bond issue, the, the Finance Director can
probably give you more detail on that. It'll probably occur during the summer, as
we've accumulated and expended County's cash, we, we don't stop a project and
wait until we do a bond issue. We actually advance cash on that project up to a
certain limit that's in the budget, and then go out for bonds to repay ourselves. So
that, those bond projects that are authorized by the Council, then get, we go out
and issue bonds and in the market and see if we can get successful bond issue for
that. And I don't know what the total dollar amount of that bond issue will be at
this point.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Mr., Mr. Chairman, I, I, guess I'm curious to
see, because we've got this position now, I wanna see how our projects are gonna
be come about now. Are we gonna see more projects occurring now, that's all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki, I had several conversations-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to this position. This is one of the positions that
we really pushed hard on. And with the person that's there today, I see lot of
improvements in, in trying to resolve issues prior to projects going out to ensure
that once we, say we're gonna do a project-COUNCIL-MEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that the timeline will be followed. So that particular person is
doing a fantastic job in that. And as she grows into the position, even further, I, I
think it's a real benefit for this County to see, in my mind, potential...big
potential savings, so-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: --thank you. Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah. Ms. Morrison, I,
I'm looking at first of all, to continue on Mr. Nishiki's questions on the
Countywide CIP Coordinator. What is the relationship between that position and
the CIP Coordinator?
MS. MORRISON: The other position, the CIP Coordinator, I wish were called
something else because it is confusing. It's a, it's a project manager job. It's a
position that was put in the Department of Management a number of years ago by
the Council to assist on small projects where, where a department has no
engineering or capital project manager in their own department to assist them with
outlining what the project is. Getting a, getting a bid out, getting construction
done, and again, these are...would be for, for example a, a assistant was requested
for opening of one of the satellite offices for the Department of Motor Vehicles,
or actually, not department, the Division of Motor Vehicles in Lahaina and they
needed to, to hire an electrician. They needed to get the things wired and so this
capital project person, the project manager, helps the department figure out how
to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And then the other position, Countywide CIP
Coordinator, how are we to justify that, that person which came from the Water
Department, and I think been on the job little over the year.
MS. MORRISON: Just in September.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And I'm sure that person going from the
Water Department to this position, that's new, under your office probably had an
increase in pay and now there's another increase been asked for which amounts to
$13,904. When everybody taking . . . (end o f tape 2B — 11:21 a.m.). . . furloughs,
and cuts, and all the UPW and HGEA members have to take cuts, how does this
look to increase somebody's salary by $13,000?
MS. MORRISON: The way this is shown in the budget is, is not what happened. The,
the person was not hired at the lower salary. They were hired at the salary that's
shown in the FY '11 Budget. The salary that was in the FY '10 Budget, was in
the anticipation that when we did hire somebody, they would come in at that
salary. When we were fortunate enough to get a senior engineer to accept the
project, that person was already at a high level in the, in the, an Engineer VI
position. So the amount of pay that was associated with their position was
already at that level. So we had to come up with the additional funds.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So is the level of pay determined by the Department
or by DPS?
MS. MORRISON: It's both. The, the Department of Personnel Services assigns a
classification to each civil service position and there's a range, in this case for
excluded managerial level five positions, there's a salary range, it's fairly broad.
And then within that range the Department has the opportunity to hire.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that clarification. On your
two Executive Assistant positions which are unfunded. What are the status of
those positions, I mean...
MS. MORRISON: Well currently they're-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just being held-MS. MORRISON: --they're just, it's just-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --without funding?
MS. MORRISON: --an open position without funding should there be any need to, at, at
any moment in time I guess, a person has return rights by Civil Service Law, to
return to their positions. Currently, neither of them is requesting to return, but
those positions are just being held, should there be a need. And we didn't want to
tie up funding, since, we didn't wanna do that so the positions just held with zero
funding but it exists which takes a certain amount of time to flow through DPS
and so that's why the positions are already created in case they would be needed
at any, at any time.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the incumbents of those two positions are still
within the County system-MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --working in other positions?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, they're in, in appointed positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And then finally, on your EP count, again, I
guess we come up with the same question, so it does total to ten when you add the
unfunded positions?
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MS. MORRISON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe, just a suggestion for the next budget go
around, that under footnotes that maybe those two positions can be noted on the
footnote so that it becomes really clear. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nope.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, if they're any questions on Account A, for
Managing Director's Office, please provide it in writing. Members, we'll go to
the B Account, on 10-4. Member Victorino, question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No major changes. No, not at this time. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I just wanted to know the Veterans
Affairs position, what, what does that do? What is that position for? B item I
guess, again, yeah.
MS. MORRISON: There's a, a grant amount, is that, is that the reference, Council
Member?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
MS. MORRISON: There, there are two small grants. One for Maui, and one for
Molokai Veterans Affairs. I believe the one on Molokai pays for their office lease
for the Veterans office over there.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Specifically for Maui and
Molokai?
MS. MORRISON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Morrison, you, you don't have any equipment
for your area? You don't have any equipment leases or anything like that? Okay,
thank you. Okay, we go into the Management Information Systems. Before we
go Q&A, I'd like to have...Mr. Verkerke provide us with some information, or
some opening comments.
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, and Committee Members. Thank
you for the opportunity to talk about our program here this morning. The MIS
Division budget request at 2.9 million for Fiscal Year 2011 represents a
15 percent reduction as compared to the budget request for Fiscal Year 2009 at
3.4 million, which is when the realization of economic troubles first set in.
Because of the leadership shown by the Mayor in reducing spending during
Fiscal 2009, the actual budget available to the MIS Division from 2009 through
2011 request has remained flat at approximately 2.9 million. During that time the
MIS Division has gone from trying to do more with less, to doing the same with
less, to now facing the prospect of doing less with less.
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The reasons for that progression are primarily found in the unavoidable increase
in the fixed costs, the MIS, MIS Division deals with. For instance, our existing
annual maintenance and support contracts with manufacturers increased by
10 percent on average each year. And we also add on new maintenance and
support contracts for each new information system or infrastructure expansion
such as for additional data storage or network connectivity that we implement
each year.
We're also faced with more office lease payments as there was not enough room
in the County Building to accommodate the MIS Staff. After salaries and these
fixed costs, MIS is left with just a little over 500,000 for everything else. And
what is this everything else that MIS does? We have published an MIS Services
Catalog, and I believe you have received a handout that looks like this, and it's
published on the internet, it lists 32 services grouped in three main categories.
These services are all focused on supporting the business of the County. Behind
these 32 services are a great number of internal technical services that make the
delivery of those 32 services possible. We are hard at work on finalizing that
catalog as well. The published MIS Service Catalog provides services ranging
from our service desk, hardware and software procurement, information systems
implementation, IT consulting, and ongoing application user support, to
communications planning for new or renovated County facilities, document
management, and collaboration capabilities such as videoconferencing. All this is
part of our continuing efforts to restructure the organization of the MIS Division,
to become a service oriented organization based on well accepted best practices in
our field.
This is an effort we have been engaged in for about a year now and it will
probably take another two years to accomplish this goal. The beauty of this effort
at this particular time is that it is largely, that it largely can be accomplished
through staff effort, and will not require special funding. The effort will also
place the MIS Division in an excellent position to support the County and it's
many anticipated initiatives, once it emerges from the current economic
conditions.
Another way we have been able to stretch our shrinking dollars is by taking
advantage of opportunities to negotiate the extensions of maintenance contracts
on PCs and servers. We now are looking at five to seven years of maintenance
support extending the useful life of much of our equipment beyond the average
life of four years. Of course this just amounts to a deferment of eventually
inevitable expenses. The Administration is aware that the bill will come due in
two to three years when we'll be faced with having to replace much greater
numbers of equipment all at the same time. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Verkerke, for that overview. Members, on the
A Account, the Chair notes that there's no increase in, in the number of
employees. Member Victorino, question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm just reading
your footnotes and I think most of the questions I would've had, are answered by
your footnotes. So, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So in the change amount
column, the minuses, is, is that all due to furloughs?
MR. VERKERKE: No, Mr. Medeiros, the furlough amount is $71,000 in salary
adjustments. The reductions you see in the individual position descriptions, is to
resolve largely of internal promotions when we had vacancies, which allowed us
to bring people up through the career path we have but brings them in at a lower
level than the previous incumbent had.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see, okay. And...your premium pay, you're asking
for an increase of 5,000 which is 16.7 percent from Fiscal Year 2010. What is the
premium pay used for mostly for your Division?
MR. VERKERKE: With the increasing dependence of many of the County departments
on IT infrastructure and, and the continuing functionality, we are faced with
having to do a lot of maintenance and corrective action after hours. Our role has
expanded. We have more responsibility for the communications infrastructure for
the Police Department, the Fire Department so even more so we are faced with
having to deal with issues when they occur whether it's during normal office
hours or not. So we anticipate that we have to schedule more, and react more
during off hours than in previous years.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that information, and then on
Page 10-8, in your footnotes, number seven, what is "Within Range Progression"
mean?
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MR. VERKERKE: It's a program that allows exempt managerial staff to receive the
equivalent of step movements when that was still something that was being done.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So all of your personnel, are, are most,
mostly all of them Civil Service positions?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so this kind of personnel action changes, does
it require something from the union as far as, does it require you to consult with
the union when you're gonna reduce somebody's pay?
MR. VERKERKE: Well, we haven't actually, other than the upcoming furlough
adjustment, we haven't actually reduced anybody's pay. People that were at the
high step range... within the salary range have left the County and through internal
movement we were able to replace 'em at a lower step.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that explanation. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Just one question. Good
morning, Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Under 12-5 in our Program Budget, one of the
objectives is to expand implementation of videoconferencing over the County's
network. Now my understanding with videoconferencing I guess the long term
goal I guess is to reduce travel, the travel costs for our, our County personnel. To
implement this, or expanding the videoconferencing area, do you foresee a need
to eventually to add more personnel for that area?
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MR. VERKERKE: Not within the next few years, I don't think so. We have been able,
this year to reach full staffing in MIS, so we have staffing in our help desk, in our
technician, and in our network areas, network support areas that should be able to
support the degree of, of implementation of videoconferencing for the next two,
maybe three years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, and I was just trying to connect the cost
savings with if, if this was where we wanted to expand the videoconferencing, if
we added more personnel than to try and balance that with, you know, the cost
savings in terms of travel for our employees. But it sort of ties into the, the
equipment request that you have for Account C but, you know, we'll, we'll get to
that later. But I just wanted to get a clear understanding as it ties into your
objectives and expansion of videoconferencing. Thank you. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if you do have any more questions
regarding A Account, if you can provide it to the Chair, I'll get that information
for you from the Budget Director. We're going to the B Account and as
mentioned by Mr. Verkerke, one of the biggest jobs I see is in regards to the
contract services. So, Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Mr. Chair, I'm, I'm satisfied with the answer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Jacob, under Object Code 6231, rental of building,
explain to me the necessity to, if you're not increasing staff, why you're needing
more space and...I don't know, and where are you renting if you're renting?
MR. VERKERKE: The actual expense for the lease payments is under 6235, but your
question is, is appropriate. The reason why we have to rent more space is because
we did not have full staffing for so many years that we could get by with the
space we have. Once it became clear that we were gonna be able to fill all the
positions we had, we needed to find more space to put the bodies. We, we're
paying for two facilities, one is in One Main Plaza for the MIS training room that
is being used for pretty much all the computer based training whether it's
provided by MIS staff or coordinated through the Department of Personnel
Services. The actual staff is located in the, the Wells Professional Building in a
suite there that, that we lease, we house eight staff in a fairly small space.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this question because I don't know.
When you have, how many places are MIS located? Do you have anybody here
in County Building too?
MR. VERKERKE: Yes, we do. We have people on the first floor and people on the
sixth floor in this County Building.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How does that make for work efficiency of your
Department when you have people separated? Is it okay?
MR. VERKERKE: It's a challenge. But, yes, I would love to have everybody in one
place, it's just not reality. What we're trying to do is improve the efficiencies
through technology. We're in the process of implementing a, a document
imaging, a work flow system that will support our many responsibilities in IT
purchasing, and the people involved in that process are indeed located, in, in three
different places, two here in the building and one in Wells Professional Building.
So we hope through electronic work flow to be able to improve the efficiency and
the effectiveness of that process 'cause right now the separation poses challenges
to us.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Who makes, who make that policy decision on where
you go and, and, and... in, in this, this Division? Because you got three places
seem like it probably be best like you said to be in one place.
MR. VERKERKE: There's just not always space available. People would have to move
out to make room for us to be consolidated and that's not something that is likely
to happen anytime soon. Everybody's struggling with space so...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is One Main Plaza, pretty well all occupied then,
there's ito vacancy there?
MR. VERKERKE: I'm, I'm, not sure about that. The reason why we opted to put the
staff in Wells Professional Building that we did is because some of those staff
work continuously and closely with the Purchasing Division in the whole IT
purchasing aspect. So they are located there. We're kind of next door to them, so
that improves some of the efficiency in, in the process but not internal to the MIS
Division necessarily. And we looked at staff that worked fairly independent as
much as we could so that we did not create a whole bunch of back and forth for
them to be able to do their job.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: People, people have to in, in their job, in, in, in doing
their job, do they have to go from place to place sometimes?
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MR. VERKERKE: The technicians, the field technicians do and our network support
staff do. And that's why the field technicians are now in what used to be CDBG
offices downstairs by the loading dock.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. VERKERKE: So we have improved our ability to receive equipment because the,
the different delivery companies can just come right there, we're right there, it's
easy to do. They don't have to ride up and down the elevator with our stuff. And
then the field technicians can load our vehicle, vehicles directly from that office.
So, so it's, it's very handy for them to be down there more so than if they were on
the sixth floor with the bulk of the staff.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just one question, the...wait, which one we on, are,
are we on...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: B Account.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just B.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ten dash eight. Oh, I'm sorry, 10-9.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. No questions for B Account.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to ask,
I'm not sure if this is the appropriate section but you have the, you have GIS staff
on your MIS.
MR. VERKERKE: No, I do not.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You don't, okay. So does your function
overlap with some of the Planning Department's Long Range in terms of
expertise and, and personnel then?
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MR. VERKERKE: Not really. We provide support through the Long Range Planning
Division like we do for pretty much all the departments in helping to support your
information systems, the data storage, their activity. But as far as their specific
job function, we don't, we don't really provide any support in, in that specific
expertise.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So there's no duplication then in-MR. VERKERKE: No. I don't think so.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --between the two? That's all I have,
Chair, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. If there's questions on the B Account, if you can
forward it to the Chair, we'll get that information to you. For equipment,
Members, if you can turn to Page 10-10. Member Victorino, questions for the
equipment?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you, Chair. You know, Mr. Verkerke,
we heard earlier from Mr. Pablo, that new equipment, you're holding off on
buying new equipment or leasing new equipment whenever and wherever
possible. And this may or not because I understand life-cycle replacement
throughout the County. But is this all necessary, and again it's not big amounts
but $1,500 per computer, that adds up real quick and, you know, if there's
specialties, I understand that. But again I guess that, that's the only question I beg
to ask is if some of this equipment could be held off, or if that could be done for
another year, I don't know. And you, you could maybe better answer that
question.
MR. VERKERKE: Yes, Mr. Victorino, as, as I mentioned earlier in my comments, as
much as we can, we try to extend that life cycle through extending support and
maintenance contracts, but there is a fair amount of equipment that even the
vendors are saying this is too old for us to keep parts for and what have you. So
we are going to be faced with a minimal amount or a certain amount, I should say,
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of replacement whether we like it or not. The, the alternative is affecting
departments' ability to do their jobs so this is our best estimate at what the
minimum amount we would have to have available would be in order for us to
make sure that the business operations are not impacted.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I thank you, I, I, I, appreciate that explanation
because I think the public at large just ask these kinds of questions and if there is
justification and it speeds efficiency and does things to make the job more, more
complete and, and more efficient I should say then, yeah, I have no problem. But
just wanted to make sure that, that's what this is all about. So thank you,
Mr. Verkerke. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You mentioned that by not maybe doing, well, I don't
know specifically if it's replacing equipment in two years we're going to get a
bunch of expenses. How does that factor into you said, number one, it affects
efficiency. How does that factor into what we're going to see in two years?
What, what kind of costs are you talking about and, and are these like we gotta do
it otherwise something happens? It's like puzzling for me to hear you say that, in
two years we're going to really have to do something and it's gonna, I, I think I, I,
I take it that it's gonna be costly.
MR. VERKERKE: In previous years we talked about the life-cycle replacement of
equipment and typically we estimate that the useful life of PCs and servers is
anywhere for four to five years. We're pushing it now out to as many as seven
years. There's going to be...so we are suspending bringing in new equipment to,
to maintain that four to five years of, of required useful life of the equipment.
What this means is that we will have equipment that if economic times had been a
little bit more favorable, equipment th:‘t we would've had replaced is not being
replaced this year. Some of that already happened last year and in the current
year. So sooner or later that equipment is gonna reach the end of its practical life.
The, the vendors will no longer support it, parts will not be available, it may not
have the performance level required for applications that are gonna continue
being upgraded and require higher levels of resources. So there is going to be a
bunching up of this replacement because we're delaying that now. And, and that
may bunch up in fewer years about two to three years out.
The exact cost of that is hard for me to estimate right now. Make...if you look
back at the budget documents and, and the actuals over the last few years in the
budget requests, you see the money that's being reduced in the equipment fund.
Sooner or later that...we'll need to find a way to make that money available again
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to equip, replace the equipment. It's gonna reach a point where even if we don't
replace the equipment it becomes too expensive to maintain because my
technicians may have to work on it continuously, they may have to be taken out of
service much more than is justifiable impacting whatever agency or department
was counting, relying on that equipment. So there's gonna be a balance at some
point where we have to say we have to find the money to replace this.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This is kind of alarming, Mr. Chairman, because it, it
it's not only his department, it's all the different departments I would think that is
going to feel that impact. And let me ask you this, when you say that... well, let
me ask you this question, how would it affect a, a certain department if some of
these things, give me a real life circumstance that could occur. When you...
MR. VERKERKE: I mean there's, there's, many examples. There's, there's few
departments that every employee does not, you know, perhaps some UPW
workers that, that are out in the field and performing those kind of task, but many
of the office based staff require computers for the job functions that they're
responsible for. Any one of them, if they can't, if they don't have a machine
available, reliably and continuously would, would be impacted in their
productivity.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is this happening now?
MR. VERKERKE: No, not yet.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
MR. VERKERKE: And, and we don't expect that, that will happen for a number of
years because the manufacturers are willing to extend their commitment to
maintain inventories of parts and, and provide support services but all of that is,
is...at some point that's all gonna come to a head. And, and that's, if there's no
money to replace it right now, this is I, I think the, the best thing we can do to
make sure that operations are not affected. But at some point, hopefully, we'll be
able to catch up on that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros.
The...under the
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
replacement columns, where you have your figures and what you're gonna
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replace in the far left column, are all of this purchases...Page 10-10? I think I on
the right page.
MR. VERKERKE: Excuse me, could you repeat the question?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. On Page 10-10, towards the middle of the
page you have a replacement column, and the figures are listed below that, I
wanna ask for especially for the PC replacements, laptop replacements, printer
replacements, maybe the server replacements, those are all purchases?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Has there been any consideration because
technology changes so quickly and you said that service life may be four to five
years, that leases haven't been considered? And you also mentioned that on the
older equipment, there's no parts because technology just changes so quickly. So
what would be the advantage if any, of leasing the equipment? So then five years,
you turn it back in, you get a new one, you don't have to dispose of the old one,
they do that for you. You don't have to worry about...do you recover any cost for
equipment that you no longer lose, use? When you get new equipment?
MR. VERKERKE: To answer the last question first,-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. VERKERKE: --typically we wear the equipment out to the point that there is really
no value. So then it just ends up being recycled through the E-waste programs.
As to the question about lease, I think that's a question more-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. VERKERKE: --appropriately answered by the Director of Finance. Over the years
I've, been made to understand that leasing equipment is something that is not the
preferred approach.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and why would you say that?
MR. VERKERKE: It, I think it's a finance technical issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But we're not talking about money, we talking
about from the field level, what works better for your office and your personnel
that utilize these equipment.
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MR. VERKERKE: I believe that purchasing allows us to...I think not having looked into
it recently, I do not believe that over the life span that we are able to realize with
equipment that a lease arrangement is going to save us much money. Because we
. . .(end of tape 3A — 11:52 a.m.). . . are able...equipment that is not in its current
state suitable for use still has parts that we can use to extend the life of other
equipment, with, with leased equipment I don't think we could do that. So I, I
think that we are getting the most benefit and the most life possible out of our
current approach to replacing and maintaining the equipment. I do not think that,
that leasing is going to show a substantial improvement in that and, and it may
add a layer of administrative effort to keep track of the leases and work with, with
the leasing agents and, and companies.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah, but and you have considered that but
you don't think it's an advantage to the County?
MR. VERKERKE: It was a number of years ago, the last time we looked at that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because a, a lot of companies, you know, are
turning to leases now because you just turn over the equipment. You don't have
to worry about disposal, and you have service contracts, they come and service
the equipment, you know, and, and fix it so I just wanted you to I, I just wanted to
hear that you folks did consider that.
MS. MORRISON: Council Member, as Mr. Verkerke has said, we haven't looked into
that recently but you raise a good question and certainly we can re-ask the
question and, and take a look.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. That's all I have. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. And, and, and when you look into
that, Ms. Morrison, if you could take a look at the different departments. I know
one that's going to be coming up next, this week have equipment replacement
almost to a million dollars, so. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to get
some information on the videoconferencing. This is set up currently where?
MR. VERKERKE: On a very limited, ...(coughs)... excuse me, on a very limited basis.
We have, we have been beneficiaries of a grant through, I think the Firewise
Program, and, and with we, I should say the Fire Department, that asked for our
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assistance to deploy that. It turned out that the equipment that was provided to us
was much more limited in its capacity than we had been led to believe. So we are
about a month away from implementing new equipment that is going to expand
our ability to support multiple voice and video conference sessions. Training and
installation will be scheduled to take place in May. So after that we will have
much more capacity to, to create videoconference centers. There's a few set up in
places now but we really do not have good management infrastructure behind that
to, to deploy it widely. So in a few months that situation should be much
improved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the 15,000 expansion, what
does that represent then?
MR. VERKERKE: That would allow us to equip some of those videoconferencing with
cameras and, and display units and what have you to make it available to
especially neighbor islands to achieve that goal of reducing travel and, and staff
time.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So these would be 15,000
cameras?
MR. VERKERKE: I don't think that a dollar a camera is gonna work too well for us so
they'll be fewer cameras but we'll have to look at the specific needs, some of the
conference centers will have to be larger, some of 'em will be smaller so we'll
have to, to fit the equipment to the circumstances. So it's hard for me to say
exactly how many cameras we'll end up buying.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the, the, the amount that I'm
looking at is the $15,000 amount?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So for 15,000 then you're saying
that you're gonna try and equip other County locations with the ability to do
videoconferencing?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then the current set up is, is where?
MR. VERKERKE: We have one or two conference facilities in the Prosecuting
Attorney's Department. There are cameras in all the fire stations but because of
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the kind of mismatched between the number of fire stations and the equipment
that was provided to manage that, we can't deploy all that so we'll be able to
activate those. I believe there's the Planning, no the Finance conference room has
a camera.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And the Finance...
MR. VERKERKE: So...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Finance Department has a, a
camera?
MR. VERKERKE: It does, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And a, a, place in which you can do
videoconferencing?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct. And then the MIS training room is set up with that
also.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay, and again can you explain
then what was, what was the reason for the, the mismatch, I guess, that you just
described, all the equipment and...
MR. VERKERKE: I'm not really sure what the reason was. Apparently, in, in
developing the specifications for the, the server so to speak that makes
videoconference sessions possible, this was done by people associated with the
grant that made this possible. Apparently, they did not recognize that there were
gonna be 14 fire stations that would need to be connected to this facility, to this
server capability. So when it was purchased and, and we were pulled in at the
time that it was ready for installation, we recognized that we couldn't manage as
many locations as the Fire Department has with the equipment provided, so in
May we'll be able to correct that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It wasn't under your oversight then?
MR. VERKERKE: No, it wasn't.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's an independent?
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MR. VERKERKE: The grant was funneled through Rural Development Program, I
believe. We were just kind of brought in when it was time to deploy the
videoconferencing.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But it was, it was to integrate the,
the Fire Departments, is that what you're saying?
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah, the Firewise Program's objective, program objective was to
improve the ability to provide training through the fire stations to Fire Department
personnel and to members of the community in kind of a, a first responder mode.
Not so much a firefighter first responder but aiding the community members
affected by any event that the Fire Department's involved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But that wasn't at our, at our cost
though?
MR. VERKERKE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. It's just that it's not working
currently?
MR. VERKERKE: It was a grant, yeah. We will be able to salvage most of that with the
extra equipment we'll be bringing in. We'll be able to tie that together, and, and
utilize most of what was provided.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, my question's just to follow
up on Member Kaho'ohalahala's question on the videoconferencing, and well,
this is something I can support. I like the idea of expanding that and saving our,
our taxpayer dollars in terms of travel cost. And, you know, sometimes the news
media plays up on the out-of-state travel, but just within the County, or within an
in-state travel it adds up big time. And if we can keep one or two people here to
do the videoconferencing that's one or two less people we have to pay airfare, or
ferry fare, or, or whatever. With this equipment upgrade, I guess if you, if you
wanna, I guess maybe that's the appropriate usage. We're, we're gonna get better
picture quality, better sound quality, and is, am I correct, Mr. Verkerke?
MR. VERKERKE: In most places that will be the case. Our network bandwidth to some
locations, the more remote locations, Molokai is one area of some concern, may
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not support as much high definition or, or voice quality as we would like. But
there are other efforts underway to improve that so we may not see cable TV
quality everywhere right away but we will try to get as close as we can.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So this...
MR. VERKERKE: This will travel over the same network infrastructure, the data traffic
travels over, we wanna make sure that one doesn't block the other by taking up all
the existing available capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So this is state of the art stuff that you're looking at?
MR. VERKERKE: Umm.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: As close to it. ...(chuckles)...
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah, you know, we, we try to maximize what we can do with the
money so we will not purchase extremely high definition cameras 'cause there
really, the extra money would hardly be justifiable, but it will be quite, quite, and,
and something I haven't mentioned, you, you mentioned how it improves the
communication within the County. This system will also be able to connect up
with the, the State videoconference center so even some travel back to Oahu or
communications with other counties will be possible through this system without
requiring actual physical travel.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good, that's a good side benefit as well. Thank you,
Mr. Verkerke. Thank, thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that was the last of the review for
Mr. Verkerke. If you have any questions on the C Account, if you can forward it
to the Chair. We'll get information back from the Administration. Members, the
last area for review is Geographic. And thank you, Mr. Verkerke. Geographic
Analyst...Analysis and Cartographic Services program. At this time we have Bill
Medeiros, from GIS. Bill is the Manager for the Department. Mr. Medeiros,
opening comments?
MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you. Let me do a, a brief overview and then we'll get to
questions. I'll try to make it very brief. Geographic Analysis and Cartographic
Services Division is mostly known for our work with GIS. We're also involved
in other geographic technology such as global positioning systems or GPS. And
this month marks ten years that we've been a, a separate division within the
County. Our program performs two major roles, and we act as a service center, so
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we provide geospatial services and products to County agencies and the public.
And this includes research analysis, creating maps, and printing presentation size
documents.
In FY 2009, we provided services and products to 18 County agencies and 11
County departments. In the current fiscal year, to this date we've produced over
500 maps or other cartographic products. Our other role is as lead agency for
geographic technologies within the County. We do research and development of
geospatial applications, provides technical support, hardware and software specs,
and we do GPS field collections. We also coordinate quarterly GIS user
meetings. The most recent one was March 1 st , and we also have a full-time staff
person specifically dedicated to supporting public safety emergency services.
Some of our current projects, again, like I mentioned we do GPS data collection.
This includes over 800 miles so far of roads throughout the County including all
major roads on Maui, Molokai, and Lanai. We've collected emergency warning
siren locations and photographs, existing and proposed Police Department
communication towers and so forth.
To support that GPS data collection we have purchased and deployed a GPS base
station. It was deployed with the assistance of the Department of Public Works
and with the Maui Police Department and we're currently in testing that system.
Another project we're working on is the development and deployment of a web
based collaborative geospatial application. In simpler terms, it's just communitybased GIS. The idea is to allow, to develop an application that can be put out so
that public, members of the public could use this to actually produce data, to
actually put their data into the system.
Originally, we intended to release an RFP and to outsource this project to a
consultant. Instead we developed a cooperative partnership with UH Maui
College's Malama Ahupuaa Program and the USGS. And our initial prototype
involves a community group from the Waihee, Waiehu area.
A summary of our budget changes for this year, there's no change to our EP
count. One of our positions which was 50 percent funded last year is now
100 percent funded. And our salary ranges increased slightly, about plus
.7 percent, about $2,000. There's no change to operations, which we took a
11 percent cut in FY '09, and as a slight reduction in equipment of about $6,000
which, which results in about 24 percent reduction, and that's my overview.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Member Molina, A Account,
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair, just one question for the GIS
Technician II, it mentions here, it was 50 percent funding in Fiscal Year '10, and
now 100 percent funding in Fiscal Year '11. Was this position partially funded in
Fiscal Year '10 from a grant, or is it just, you, you looking at turning this more
into a full-time?
MR. MEDEIROS: You know, last year it was intended, we had proposed it to be
100 percent funded-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mm-hmm.
MR. MEDEIROS: --but it was cut to six month funding, and so the idea was to wait to
hire and our person starts in about two weeks.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, and this, the role of this individual will be
in terms of scope of responsibility versus the GIS Analyst, or the other GIS
positions, this is a tech, technical position?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. It does not require a college degree although the person we did
hire has a college degree. It's primarily a map maker, I mean we do the whole
spectrum. Everybody makes maps, but I mean the idea is that this person's
primary function is to just produce maps and not to do analysis. And then that
releases the analysts to actually do more analysis and actually the higher-end
work.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I guess my only other question here has
to do with how, how it's integrated in terms of your GIS staff with the assistance
of Planning.
MR. MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Because, you know, I've been using a lot
of that kind of support in the General Plan processes so, so how are you integrated
with the, with the Planning Department?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. Actually, they're, they're couple other departments that also
have GIS staff. So the Department of Finance does and so does the Department
of Public Works. And so individual departments and, and so when we talked
about us being a service center so we provide services to departments that have no
GIS staff. And so we produce these products. And then for those that have GIS
staff, we do primarily tech support and in the case of Planning Department
because their work requires so much mapping, I mean so much of Planning
involves mapping, I mean we spun out of originally from the Planning
Department, that they felt that they needed to have their own team and overtime,
justified the positions and they do that. So we provide Countywide standards, in
terms of software, in terms of the map projection, some of the technical standards,
but for the most part they are self-contained and they produce whatever products.
I mean there ample, ample staff to produce whatever products are needed for all
aspects of the, whatever the Planning Department does, whether it's planning,
zoning, enforcement, those kind of things.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So are you integrated in terms of
software? You are? And so everyone's on the same...
MR. MEDEIROS. Yes, we all use the same software product. In fact the same vendors,
so it's ESRI. In those cases, say if a department is interested in doing something
different, so in the case of Public Works is using a, a different software for a
project they're working on, we'll get involved in actually testing it, and making
sure that it works. But yes, between all of the agencies in the County, we use the,
the same software products.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the next one, is there, is there a
duplication in your view?
MR. MEDEIROS: In terms of actually day to day work load, not usually. On occasion
we will get a request to do work that involves planning and zoning, okay. And it
normally happens on those occasions where the Planning Department staff is
involved in something else, and, you know, there's some work load issues. So in
the case of the Census geography, we had several meetings with the Planning
Department in terms of how to break the, the work load of producing these, this
information for, to support the Census. And we ended up doing the local update
of Census addresses and the Planning Department did the participants statistical
areas program, which is primarily the Census tracks and blocks and block groups,
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those kind of things. And so yes, sometimes, sometimes it's not so much overlap,
but sometimes we provide some extra assistance, and then we go back on
supporting the rest of our client agencies. But we don't produce the same data
sets they produce.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I, I'm just trying to understand
how this and, and I'm surprised to hear that there are others now for, how is, how
is Finance, I mean, I'm ... (inaudible)...
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, the position at Finance, is in Real Property Tax.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that's-MR. MEDEIROS: And so...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the GIS expert there and...
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, and assisting in terms of their parcel mapping side. So they
have AutoCAD people, and now they have a GIS person to actually piece that
together.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then generally you provide the, the
technical support to all of these departments?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So you're the go to guy?
MR. MEDEIROS: We, as a group, yes. So if, if somebody has a problem that involves
anything to do with geography \Air '11 get called in.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Seem like I'm talking to
myself, but Mr. Medeiros...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(chuckles)...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ...(chuckles)...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go head, Bill.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, just, just a short note.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Call him Bill.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ...(chuckles)... When, when I was in the Public
Works, he and I got each other's e-mail, like daily, you know, and, and even now
it's not as bad, but once in awhile. ...(chuckles)....
MR. MEDEIROS: ...(Chuckles)... Yeah, it still happens.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I even got his credit union information too.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: How long has GIS been in existence?
MR. MEDEIROS: As a separate agency, ten years this month.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Ten years, okay. And I'm looking at, I, I believe
this is your position, Geographic Services Manager?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So why was there a decrease in pay?
MR. MEDEIROS: Similar to another position, we were in the process of, of
reclassifying the position from a GIS Analyst to a managerial position, to go from
SR to EM. And so we projected a, an amount and so once that was finally settled,
we hit, projected high. I was somewhat conservative in terms of making sure we
didn't run out of money and so the new salary level is the salary level for that
position, that new class.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. So did you go from a position to this new
position and make less money?
MR. MEDEIROS: No, I'm actually making more money. ...(chuckles)....
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, okay. And your six personnel count, your EP
count, you've had six since 2008, what has it been prior to that? Pretty much six?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Well, we started with two, and then we went to three, and went to
four, and so in terms of you, if you look at the numbering you can kind of see the
pattern.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: So MD-0025 and -0026 were myself, and one of our, one of our staff
from Planning that was, we spun off. And then MD-0032 was when they added
one. That was about 2000, 2001. MD-0042, couple years later and then we
ended -0052 and -0053, it says xx, but it's -0052, the last two were done about
two or three years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So because we hear about so many other
departments relying on your Division for...as a resource, do you, do you find six
personnel sufficient to be able to accommodate all of that work?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. I think, I think, I think we're good now and I think what we try
to do and this is, this is how we can make that work is we try not to take work out
of the agency, but rather go work with the agency's existing staff.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: So if you looked at, you know, specifically, GIS staff in terms of their
class, their, their SR, you know, whatever, their position title-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: --there's, you know, a little over a dozen, you know, or so. But in
terms of actual people using GIS every day, there's a whole lot more.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: Because we by to train existing staff so if you go down to say even
Police Dispatch they use GIS for every call. And so what we try to do is not try to
replace staff in the agencies but rather-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: --to get them to use GIS in their own agencies-COUNCILM EMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
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MR. MEDEIROS: --and then once they're good at it, we move on to the next agency so
six is a, is a good team.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Workable number?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, we have one Member that have an
appointment and we've gone, well, the schedule is up to 1:00 p.m., and, and, you
know, you notice that some of the Members have gone. So real quickly, anybody
got questions on the B Account which is flat?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anybody has any questions on the C Account? If not, if you
have any questions on the B and the C Account, if you can put it in writing and
the Chair will have the Department and, and or the Budget Director to answer
those questions. Real quickly, we do have a flight to catch. We gonna be on
Molokai this evening at the Mitchell Pauole Center, and our meeting starts at
6:30. When we get back here tomorrow morning we will be reviewing the
Department of Fire and Public Service, that will be at 10 o'clock. So, Members,-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --have a safe trip.
COUNCILM EMBER VICTORINO: Just...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If I, if I, please excuse me, I think it's 6:45, for
Molokai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, 6:45.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2010

COUNCIL MEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corrected, thank you. And on Wednesday, Paia Community
Center, and then Thursday, we go to Lanai High and Elementary School. The
Chair at this time would like to thank Mr. Medeiros for being here, Ms. Morrison
for being here. Just one final comment though, in regards to some of the
questions that Member KahoIohalahala had asked in, in reviewing the Maui
Island Plan, I, I don't know how it's going to interface between your Department
and the Department of Planning and how does the cost be separated in regards to
what has been looked at as we review the Maui Island Plan. So there are some
cost implications. I, I don't know how it's gonna affect the GIS area. We, we
have the numbers for the Planning Department, so I, I leave that comment to you.
So, Members, at this time, the Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
March 29 is now adjourned. .. (gavel). .
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 12:20 p.m.
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